
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 UNAUDITED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

THIRD QUARTER 

30TH SEPTEMBER 2021 
 

 

 

 



  

1 

Prestige... Compassionate & Caring 

 

 

PRESTIGE ASSURANCE PLC 

 

REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS AND UNAUDITED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS  

 

FOR THE PERIOD ENDED 30TH SEPTEMBER 2021 

   

 

Contents                 Page 

 

 

Results at a Glance        2 

 

Certificate Pursuant to Section 60(2) of the Investment and Securities Act          3 

 

Management Discuss and Analysis      4-5 

 

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies     6-36 

 

Shareholding Structure/Free Float Status      37 

 

Statement of Profit or Loss       38 

 

Statement of Other Comprehensive Income     39 

 

Statement of Financial Position       40 

 

Statement of Changes in Equity                     41 

 

Statement of Cash Flows                      42 

 

Notes to the Financial Statements      43-48 

 

            

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



  

2 

Prestige... Compassionate & Caring 

 
 

 

 

 

PRESTIGE ASSURANCE PLC 

 

RESULTS AT A GLANCE  

 

FOR THE PERIOD ENDED 30TH SEPTEMBER 2021 

 

 

  
2021 

 
2020 

 
  %   

 
 ₦’000  

 
 ₦’000  

 
  Changes   

      

Gross premium written  7,512,077    5,370,785    39.87  
 

     

Net premium income   3,553,655    2,682,343    32.48  
 

     

Underwriting expenses  3,159,747    2,401,804    31.56  
 

     

Interest Income  414,493    357,978    15.79  
 

     

Other investment income  196,084    147,883    32.59  
 

     

Other operating income  29,742    114,566    (74.04) 
 

     

Profit Before Tax  1,137,518    1,029,004    10.55  
 

     

Profit for the Period Ended  937,085    751,173    24.75  
 

     

Net assets  13,009,167    12,403,395    4.88  
 

     

Total assets  19,045,073    18,504,925    2.92  
 

     

Basic earnings per share (Kobo)  7.07    5.67    24.71  
 

     

Diluted earnings per share (Kobo)  7.07    5.67    24.71  
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CERTIFICATE PURSUANT TO SECTION 60(2) OF INVESTMENT AND SECURITIES ACT  

 

FOR THE PERIOD ENDED 30TH SEPTEMBER 2021 

 

 

 

We, the undersigned, hereby certify the following with regards to our unaudited financial statements for the period 

ended 30th September 2021 

 

that: 

 

(a) We have reviewed the financial statements; 

 

(b) To the best of our knowledge, the financial statements does not: 

• Contain any untrue statement of a material fact, or 

• Omit to state a material fact, which would make the statements, misleading in the light of   

 Circumstances under which such financial statements were made; 

 

(c) To the best of our knowledge, the financial statements and other financial information included in the  

 report fairly present  

 in all material respects the financial condition and results of operations of the Company as at, and for the 

 period presented in the report; 

 

(d) We: 

• Are responsible for establishing and maintaining internal controls; 

• Have designed such internal controls to ensure that material information relating to the Company is made  

 Known to such officers by others within the entity particularly during the period in which the periodic reports 

 are being prepared; 

• Have evaluated the effectiveness of the Company’s internal controls as of date within 90 days prior to the 

 report; 

• Have presented in the report our conclusions about the effectiveness of our internal controls based on our 

 evaluation as of that date; 

 

(e) We have disclosed to the Audit Committee: 

• All significant deficiency in the design or operations of internal controls which would adversely affect the 

Company’s ability to record, process, summarize and report financial data and have identified for the 

Company’s Audit Committee any material weakness in internal controls, and; 

• Any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have significant  

 role in the Company’s internal controls; 

• We have identified in the report whether or not there were significant changes in internal controls or other 

factors that could significantly affect internal controls subsequent to the date of our evaluation, including 

any corrective actions with regard to significant deficiencies and material weaknesses. 

 

 

 

 

 

  

               …….........................................                                                                 ....................................................... 

          Sarbeswar Sahoo      Mr. Emmanuel Oluwadare  

    Managing Director/CEO      Chief Financial Officer    

             

  

 

28th October 2021 
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS  

 

FOR THE PERIOD ENDED 30TH SEPTEMBER 2021 

 

In accordance with the provision of Section 359 (6) of the Companies and Allied Matters Act, CAP C20, Laws of the 

Federation of Nigeria, 2004, Management has reviewed the unaudited financial statements of the Company for 

the period ended 30th September 2021and report as follows:  

 

The accounting and reporting policies of the Company are consistent within legal requirements and agreed ethical 

practices.   

 

The scope and planning of the internal audit was adequate. 

 

The Company maintained effective systems of accounting and internal control during the period.  

 

The Nature of the Business 

Prestige Assurance Plc is a non–life insurance business with over sixty years’ experience in Nigeria. The Company’s 

core areas of business include motor, marine, bond, engineering, fire, aviation, oil and gas and general accident.  

 

The Company is known for providing expertise knowledge especially in high-risk businesses such as aviation, marine, 

oil and gas.   

 

Our Company is known by populace for prompt settlement of claims and other supports as it may be necessary. 

 

The major bulk of our business comes from brokers market.  

 

Management Objectives 

I.  To be in the forefront of risk carrying in Nigerian insurance market, with a penchant for quality products and 

efficient service delivery to our esteemed customers. 

 

II.  To position the Company amongst the best insurance companies in Nigeria. 

 

III. To ensure that values are created for the stakeholders. 

 

IV.  To be an ethical company among the listed institution in Nigeria and the world at large. 

 

 

Our Strategies 

In order to meet the above objectives, the management of the Company have put the following strategies in 

place. 

 

I. The Company has instituted sound corporate governance in order to drive both the internal process and the 

business Environment. 

 

II. Adequate reinsurance has been put in place to absorb the impact of high risk which may likely occur due  

 to the area of Specialization of the Company.  

 

III. Aside from the normal business, the Company also provides add on services such as customer education,  

 policy audit and lease financing. 
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS – CONTINUED 

 

FOR THE PERIOD ENDED 30TH SEPTEMBER 2021 

 

Our Strategies – Continued 

 

I. The Company engages in training and empowerment of her workforce to meet up with the challenges of  

 modern business. 

 

II. It is also in the current agenda of the Company to recruit more hands with specialised skills to compete 

favourably in the industry.  

 

III. The Company has also met up with her civil responsibility and promised to do more to better the interest of  

 Stakeholders at large. 

 

Our Resources, Risks and Relationship 

Our most valuable resources are our human capital. The staff welfare is paramount to the Company. Non-human 

resources are of small relevance without appropriate personnel to drive the system. 

 

Insurance business is a kind of business that is full of risk known as insurable risks. 

 

This is a known risk but which the likelihood and magnitude of the occurrence is not certain. 

 

The Company has put in place a balanced re-insurance policy to absorb the impact of such risks at any time in 

future. 

 

Aside from this, the Company is also faced with diverse risks which are financial and non-financial in nature. 

 

Several strategies are already in place to mitigate their negative impact on the business and the Company itself. 

 

Prestige Assurance Plc is a subsidiary of The New India Assurance Company Limited, Mumbai, India. Our parent 

company is one of the largest insurance business undertakers across the Afro-Asia continent (except Japan). The 

parent company provides support to us in all ramifications which had impact positively in term of skills and financial 

status to underwrite high risk businesses rarely underwritten by the local companies. 

 

Financial Results and Prospects 

For the period ended 30th September 2021, the Gross Premium Income of the Company increased by 39.87% 

compared with previous period.  

 

Underwriting profit for the Period went up by N230 Million when compared with the previous 30th September 2020 

whilst profit for the period Increased by N109 Million compared to prior period. 

 

The Shareholder’s Fund of the Company increased by N3.81 Billion representing 41.45% Increase when compared 

with 30th September 2020 and as well 4.88% growth when compared with December 2020. 
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 

 

 

1. Corporate information    

      

a. The Unaudited financial statements for the year ended 30th September 2021 were authorized for issue in 

accordance with a resolution of the Directors on 14th July 2020. Prestige Assurance Plc was incorporated on 

6th January 1970. The Company is a subsidiary of New India Assurance Limited which was established on 18 

August 1918. 

  

Its registered office is located at 19, Ligali Ayorinde Street, Victoria Island, Lagos, Nigeria. 

    

 The Company is regulated by the National Insurance Commission of Nigeria (NAICOM). 

      

b. Principal activity 

The Company is licensed to carry non-life insurance business. The Company provides cover in all classes of 

insurance, basically non-life treaty and facultative insurance, backed by reinsurer in the London and African 

reinsurance markets. The products and services by the Company cuts across general accident, energy, fire, 

marine, workers compensation, terrorism and bond.  

     

2. Summary of significant accounting policies 

      

2.1 Introduction to summary of accounting policies 

The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation of these financial statements are set out below. 

These policies have been consistently applied to all the years presented, unless otherwise stated. 

    

2.2 Basis of presentation and preparation   

The financial statements of Prestige Assurance Plc have been prepared on a going concern basis and is 

presented in order of liquidity. The Directors of the Company have a reasonable expectation that the 

Company has adequate resources to continue in operational existence for the foreseeable future.  

 

2.2.1 Statement of compliance 

The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the International Financial Reporting 

Standards (IFRS) as issued by the International Accounting Standards Board (IASB) and IFRS Interpretation 

Committee (IFRIC) interpretations applicable to companies reporting under IFRS. Additional information 

required by national regulations, the Company and Allied Matters Act CAP C20 Law of the Federation of 

Nigeria 2004, the Financial Reporting Council of Nigeria Act No. 6, 2011, Insurance Act 2003 and its 

interpretations issued by the National Insurance Commission in its Insurance Industry Policy Guidelines is 

included where appropriate.  

  

The financial statements comprise the statement of financial position, the statement of profit or loss and other 

comprehensive income, the statement of changes in equity, the statement of cash flows and the notes to the 

financial statements. 

 

2.2.2 Basis of measurements 

The preparation of these financial statements has been based on the historical cost basis except for investment 

properties, land and building, financial assets at fair value through profit or loss and equity instruments 

measured at fair value through other comprehensive income that are measured at revalued amounts or fair 

values, as explained in the accounting policies below. Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of the 

consideration given in exchange for assets. In accordance with IFRS 4: Insurance Contracts, the Company has 

applied existing accounting policies for its Non-life insurance contracts, modified as appropriate to comply 

with the IFRS framework. 

  

 The principal accounting policies are set out below. 
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PRESTIGE ASSURANCE PLC 

 

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES-CONTINUED 

 

2.3 Changes in accounting policies and disclosures 

 

   New and amended standards and interpretations 

In these financial statements, the Company has applied IFRS 9, IFRS 7R (Revised) and IFRS 15 effective for 

annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2018, for the first time. The Company has not early adopted 

any other standard, interpretation or amendment that has been issued but is not yet effective. 

 

Several other amendments and interpretations apply for the first time in 2018, but do not have an impact on 

the financial statements of the Company. 

a) IFRS 9 - Financial instruments: Impact on adoption 

The Company has adopted IFRS 9 as issued by the IASB in July 2014 with a date of transition of 1 January 2018, 

which resulted in changes in accounting policies and adjustments to the amounts previously recognised in the 

financial statements. IFRS 9 replaces IAS 39 for annual periods on or after 1 January 2018. 

As permitted by the transitional provisions of IFRS 9, the Company has not restated comparative information 

for 2017 for financial instruments in the scope of IFRS 9.  

 

Changes to classification and measurement 

To determine their classification and measurement category, IFRS 9 requires all financial assets, except equity 

instruments and derivatives, to be assessed based on a combination of the entity’s business model for 

managing the assets and the instruments’ contractual cash flow characteristics. 

 

The IAS 39 measurement categories of financial assets (fair value through profit or loss (FVPL), available for sale 

(AFS), held-to-maturity and loans have been replaced by: 

•  Debt instruments at amortised cost. 

• Debt instruments at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVOCI), with gains or losses    

  recycled to profit or loss on derecognition. 

• Equity instruments at FVOCI, with no recycling of gains or losses to profit or loss on derecognition. 

• Financial assets at FVTPL. 

 

The accounting for financial liabilities remains largely the same as it was under IAS 39. 
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES-CONTINUED 

 

2.3 Changes in accounting policies and disclosures- continued  

 

Changes to the impairment calculation 

The adoption of IFRS 9 has fundamentally changed the Company’s accounting for loan loss impairments by 

replacing IAS 39’s incurred loss approach (with the exception of insurance related assets which is not within the 

scope of IFRS 9 just yet) with a forward-looking expected credit loss (ECL) approach. IFRS 9 requires the 

Company to record an allowance for ECLs for loans and other debt financial assets not held at FVPL. The 

allowance is based on the ECLs associated with the probability of default in the next twelve months unless there 

has been a significant increase in credit risk since origination, in which case lifetime ECLs are calculated.  

 

Details of the Company’s impairment method are disclosed in Note 2.9.  

 

b) IFRS 7 Revised (IFRS 7R) 

To reflect the differences between IFRS 9 and IAS 39, IFRS 7 Financial Instruments: Disclosures was updated and 

the Company has adopted it, together with IFRS 9, for the year beginning 1 January 2018.  

 

c) IFRS 15 Revenue from contracts with customers 

The Company adopted IFRS 15 Revenue from contracts with customers on its effective date of 1 January 2018. 

IFRS 15 replaces IAS 18 Revenue and establishes a five-step model to account for revenue arising from contracts 

with customers. It applies to all contracts with customers except leases, financial instruments and insurance 

contracts. The standard establishes a more systematic approach for revenue measurement and recognition by 

introducing a five-step model governing revenue recognition. The five-step model requires the Insurer to (i) 

identify the contract with the customer, (ii) identify each of the performance obligations included in the contract, 

(iii) determine the amount of consideration in the contract, (iv) allocate the consideration to each of the 

identified performance obligations and (v) recognise revenue as each performance obligation is satisfied. 

 

The adoption of IFRS 15 has no impact in the revenue recognition of the company as the revenue of the company 

is being recognized using IFRS 4 as amended. Revenue recognition for Net fair value (loss)/gain on financial assets 

and other investment income are recognised based on requirements of IFRS 9. In addition, guidance on interest 

and dividend income have been moved from IAS 18 to IFRS 9 without significant changes to the requirements. 

 

d) IFRIC Interpretation 22 Foreign Currency Transactions and Advance Considerations 

The Interpretation clarifies that, in determining the spot exchange rate to use on initial recognition of the related 

asset, expense or income (or part of it) on the derecognition of a non-monetary asset or non-monetary liability 

relating to advance consideration, the date of the transaction is the date on which an entity initially recognises 

the non-monetary asset or non-monetary liability arising from the advance consideration. If there are multiple 

payments or receipts in advance, then the entity must determine the date of the transactions for each payment 

or receipt of advance consideration. This Interpretation does not have any impact on the Company’s financial 

statements. 
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PRESTIGE ASSURANCE PLC 

 

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES-CONTINUED 

 

2.3 Changes in accounting policies and disclosures- continued  

 

e) Amendments to IFRS 4 Applying IFRS 9 Financial Instruments with IFRS 4 Insurance Contracts 

The amendments address concerns arising from implementing the new financial instruments standard, IFRS 9, 

before implementing IFRS 17 Insurance Contracts, which replaces IFRS 4. The amendments introduce two options 

for entities issuing insurance contracts: a temporary exemption from applying IFRS 9 and an overlay approach. 

These amendments are not relevant to the Company as it has already adopted IFRS in 2018. 

 

f) Amendments to IAS 40 Transfers of Investment Property 

The amendments clarify when an entity should transfer property, including property under construction or 

development into, or out of investment property. The amendments state that a change in use occurs when the 

property meets, or ceases to meet, the definition of investment property and there is evidence of the change in 

use. A mere change in management’s intentions for the use of a property does not provide evidence of a 

change in use. These amendments do not have any impact on the Company’s financial statements. 

 

g) Impact of adoption of new standard on the third statement of financial position 

The Company adopted new IFRS standards during the year which led to changes in its accounting policies.  The 

Company applied these changes in accounting policies retrospectively and as such it is expected to present a 

third statement of financial position as at the beginning of the preceding period in addition to the minimum 

comparative financial statements as required by IAS 1.40A. However, the third statement of financial position is 

not presented because the company opted not to restate the comparative figures as permitted by IFRS 9 and 

IFRS 15.  

 

h) Other standards that became effective during the year but have no impact on the Company’s financial 

statements. 

Amendments to IFRS 2 Classification and Measurement of Share-based Payment Transactions 

Amendments to IAS 28 Investments in Associates and Joint Ventures - Clarification that measuring investees at 

fair value through profit or loss is an investment-by-investment choice 

 

2.4 Standards issued but not yet effective  

 

The standards and interpretations that are issued, but not yet effective, up to the date of issuance of the 

Company’s financial statements are disclosed below. The Insurer intends to adopt these standards and 

interpretations, if applicable, when they become effective. 

   

IFRS 16 - Leases  

IFRS 16 was issued in January 2016 and it replaces IAS 17 Leases, IFRIC 4 Determining whether an Arrangement 

contains a Lease, SIC-15 Operating Leases-Incentives and SIC-27 Evaluating the Substance of Transactions 

Involving the Legal Form of a Lease. IFRS 16 sets out the principles for the recognition, measurement, presentation 

and disclosure of leases and requires lessees to account for all leases under a single on-balance sheet model 

similar to the accounting for finance leases under IAS 17. The standard includes two recognition exemptions for 

lessees – leases of ’low-value’ assets (e.g., personal computers) and short-term leases (i.e., leases with a lease 

term of 12 months or less). At the commencement date of a lease, a lessee will recognise a liability to make lease 

payments (i.e., the lease liability) and an asset representing the right to use the underlying asset during the lease 

term (i.e., the right-of-use asset). Lessees will be required to separately recognise the interest expense on the lease 

liability and the depreciation expense on the right-of-use asset.   

 

Lessees will also be required to remeasure the lease liability upon the occurrence of certain events (e.g., a 

change in the lease term, a change in future lease payments resulting from a change in an index or rate used 

to determine those payments). The lessee will generally recognise the amount of the remeasurement of the lease 

liability as an adjustment to the right-of-use asset.   
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES-CONTINUED 
 

2.4 Standards issued but not yet effective- continued  

 

IFRS 16 – Leases – continued 

Lessor accounting under IFRS 16 is substantially unchanged from today’s accounting under IAS 17. Lessors will 

continue to classify all leases using the same classification principle as in IAS 17 and distinguish between two types 

of leases: operating and finance leases.  

 

IFRS 16, which is effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2019, requires lessees and lessors to 

make more extensive disclosures than under IAS 17.  

 

A lessee can choose to apply the standard using either a full retrospective or a modified retrospective approach. 

The standard’s transition provisions permit certain reliefs.  

 

In applying IFRS 16 for the first time, the Company will use the following practical expedients permitted by the 

standard: 

• the accounting for operating leases with a remaining lease term of less than 12 months as at 1 January 

2018 as short-term leases 

 

The Company plans to adopt IFRS 16 using modified retrospective approach. The Company has also elected not 

to apply IFRS 16 to contracts that were not identified as containing a lease under IAS 17 and IFRIC 4 Determining 

whether an Arrangement contains a Lease. Thus, the adoption of IFRS 16 in 2019 will not have any material impact 

on the Company because the company is a lessor in some of its lease arrangement and only engage in short-

term lease in a position it acts like a lessee. 

 

     IFRS 17 Insurance Contracts  

In May 2017, the IASB issued IFRS 17 Insurance Contracts, a comprehensive new accounting standard for 

insurance contracts covering recognition and measurement, presentation and disclosure, which replaces IFRS 

4 Insurance Contracts. 
 

In contrast to the requirements in IFRS 4, which are largely based on grandfathering previous local accounting 

policies for measurement purposes, IFRS 17 provides a comprehensive model (the general model) for insurance 

contracts, supplemented by the variable fee approach for contracts with direct participation features that are 

substantially investment-related service contracts, and the premium allocation approach mainly for short- 

duration which typically applies to certain non-life insurance contracts. 
 

The main features of the new accounting model for insurance contracts are, as follows: 

 

• The measurement of the present value of future cash flows, incorporating an explicit risk adjustment,  

  remeasured every reporting period (the fulfilment cash flows) 

 

• A Contractual Service Margin (CSM) that is equal and opposite to any day one gain in the fulfilment cash  

  flows of a group of contracts. The CSM represents the unearned profitability of the insurance contracts and  

  is recognised in profit or loss over the service period (i.e., coverage period) 

 

• Certain changes in the expected present value of future cash flows are adjusted against the CSM and  

  thereby recognised in profit or loss over the remaining contractual service period. 

 

• The effect of changes in discount rates will be reported in either profit or loss or other comprehensive income, 

 determined by an accounting policy choice 

 

• The recognition of insurance revenue and insurance service expenses in the statement of comprehensive 

  income based on the concept of services provided during the period 

 

• Amounts that the policyholder will always receive, regardless of whether an insured event happens (non- 

 distinct investment components) are not presented in profit or loss, but are recognised directly on the  

 statement of financial position. 
 

• Insurance services results (earned revenue less incurred claims) are presented separately from the insurance     

 finance income or expense 

• Extensive disclosures to provide information on the recognised amounts from insurance contracts and the  

  nature and extent of risks arising from these contracts. 
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES-CONTINUED 

 

2.4 Standards issued but not yet effective- continued  

 

IFRS 17 – Insurance Contracts – continued 

IFRS 17 is effective for annual reporting periods beginning on or after 1 January 2022, with comparative figures 

required. Early application is permitted, provided the entity also applies IFRS 9 and IFRS 15 on or before the date 

it first applies IFRS 17. Retrospective application is required. 

 

However, if full retrospective application for a group of insurance contracts is impracticable, then the entity is 

required to choose either a modified retrospective approach or a fair value approach. The Company is currently 

assessing the impact of IFRS 17 in its financial statements and its impact on the company financial statements 

cannot be ascertained as at 31st December 2018 due to the fact that the company is still undergoing assessment 

phase of the standard. 

 

IFRIC Interpretation 23 Uncertainty over Income Tax Treatment 

The Interpretation addresses the accounting for income taxes when tax treatments involve uncertainty that 

affects the application of IAS 12 and does not apply to taxes or levies outside the scope of IAS 12, nor does it 

specifically include requirements relating to interest and penalties associated with uncertain tax treatments. The 

Interpretation specifically addresses the following:  

• Whether an entity considers uncertain tax treatments separately  

• The assumptions an entity makes about the examination of tax treatments by taxation authorities  

• How an entity determines taxable profit (tax loss), tax bases, unused tax losses, unused tax credits and tax  

  rates  

• How an entity considers changes in facts and circumstances  

An entity has to determine whether to consider each uncertain tax treatment separately or together with one 

or more other uncertain tax treatments. The approach that better predicts the resolution of the uncertainty 

should be followed. The interpretation is effective for annual reporting periods beginning on or after 1 January 

2019, but certain transition reliefs are available. The Company does not expect this interpretation to have 

material impact on the financial statements. 

 

Amendments to IFRS 9: Prepayment Features with Negative Compensation 

Under IFRS 9, a debt instrument can be measured at amortised cost or at fair value through other comprehensive 

income, provided that the contractual cash flows are ‘solely payments of principal and interest on the principal 

amount outstanding’ (the SPPI criterion) and the instrument is held within the appropriate business model for 

that classification. The amendments to IFRS 9 clarify that a financial asset passes the SPPI criterion regardless of 

the event or circumstance that causes the early termination of the contract and irrespective of which party 

pays or receives reasonable compensation for the early termination of the contract. The amendments should 

be applied retrospectively and are effective from 1 January 2019, with earlier application permitted. These 

amendments have no impact on the financial statements of the Company. 

 

Amendments to IFRS 10 and IAS 28: Sale or Contribution of Assets between an Investor and its Associate or Joint 

Venture 

The amendments address the conflict between IFRS 10 and IAS 28 in dealing with the loss of control of a 

subsidiary that is sold or contributed to an associate or joint venture. The amendments clarify that the gain or 

loss resulting from the sale or contribution of assets that constitute a business, as defined in IFRS 3, between an 

investor and its associate or joint venture, is recognised in full. Any gain or loss resulting from the sale or 

contribution of assets that do not constitute a business, however, is recognised only to the extent of unrelated 

investors’ interests in the associate or joint venture. The IASB has deferred the effective date of these 

amendments indefinitely, but an entity that early adopts the amendments must apply them prospectively. These 

amendments have no impact on the financial statements of the company as the company has neither 

Associate nor Joint Venture. 
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES-CONTINUED 

 

2.4 Standards issued but not yet effective- continued  

 

Amendments to IAS 19: Plan Amendment, Curtailment or Settlement  

The amendments to IAS 19 address the accounting when a plan amendment, curtailment or settlement occurs 

during a reporting period. The amendments specify that when a plan amendment, curtailment or settlement 

occurs during the annual reporting period, an entity is required to: 

• Determine current service cost for the remainder of the period after the plan amendment, curtailment, or 

  settlement, using the actuarial assumptions used to remeasure the net defined benefit liability (asset)  

  reflecting the benefits offered under the plan and the plan assets after that event 

• Determine net interest for the remainder of the period after the plan amendment, curtailment or settlement 

  using: the net defined benefit liability (asset) reflecting the benefits offered under the plan and the plan 

  assets after that event; and the discount rate used to remeasure that net defined benefit liability (asset). 

 

The amendments also clarify that an entity first determines any past service cost, or a gain or loss on settlement, 

without considering the effect of the asset ceiling. This amount is recognised in profit or loss. An entity then 

determines the effect of the asset ceiling after the plan amendment, curtailment or settlement.  Any change in 

that effect, excluding amounts included in the net interest, is recognised in other comprehensive income. 

 

The amendments apply to plan amendments, curtailments, or settlements occurring on or after the beginning 

of the first annual reporting period that begins on or after 1 January 2019, with early application permitted. These 

amendments have no impact on the financial statements of the company. 

 

 

Amendments to IAS 28: Long-term interests in associates and joint ventures  

The amendments clarify that an entity applies IFRS 9 to long-term interests in an associate or joint venture to 

which the equity method is not applied but that, in substance, form part of the net investment in the associate 

or joint venture (long-term interests). This clarification is relevant because it implies that the expected credit loss 

model in IFRS 9 applies to such long-term interests. 

 

The amendments also clarified that, in applying IFRS 9, an entity does not take account of any losses of the 

associate or joint venture, or any impairment losses on the net investment, recognised as adjustments to the net 

investment in the associate or joint venture that arise from applying IAS 28 Investments in Associates and Joint 

Ventures. 

 

The amendments should be applied retrospectively and are effective from 1 January 2019, with early 

application permitted. Since the Company does not have such long-term interests in its associate and joint 

venture, the amendments will not have an impact on its financial statements. 

 

    Annual Improvements 2015-2017 Cycle (issued in December 2017)  

 

These improvements include:  

 

• IFRS 3 Business Combinations  

The amendments clarify that, when an entity obtains control of a business that is a joint operation, it applies the 

requirements for a business combination achieved in stages, including remeasuring previously held interests in 

the assets and liabilities of the joint operation at fair value. In doing so, the acquirer remeasures its entire 

previously held interest in the joint operation. 

An entity applies those amendments to business combinations for which the acquisition date is on or after the 

beginning of the first annual reporting period beginning on or after 1 January 2019, with early application 

permitted. These amendments will not have an impact on the Company’s financial statements. 
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2.4 Standards issued but not yet effective- continued  

 

Annual Improvements 2015-2017 Cycle (issued in December 2017) - continued 

• IFRS 11 Joint Arrangements  

A party that participates in, but does not have joint control of, a joint operation might obtain joint control of the 

joint operation in which the activity of the joint operation constitutes a business as defined in IFRS 3. The 

amendments clarify that the previously held interests in that joint operation are not remeasured. 

An entity applies those amendments to transactions in which it obtains joint control on or after the beginning of 

the first annual reporting period beginning on or after 1 January 2019, with early application permitted. These 

amendments are currently not applicable to the Company but may apply to future transactions. 

 

• IAS 12 Income Taxes  

The amendments clarify that the income tax consequences of dividends are linked more directly to past 

transactions or events that generated distributable profits than to distributions to owners. Therefore, an entity 

recognises the income tax consequences of dividends in profit or loss, other comprehensive income or equity 

according to where the entity originally recognised those past transactions or events. 

 

An entity applies those amendments for annual reporting periods beginning on or after 1 January 2019, with 

early application permitted. When an entity first applies those amendments, it applies them to the income tax 

consequences of dividends recognised on or after the beginning of the earliest comparative period. Since the 

Company’s current practice is in line with these amendments, the Company does not expect any effect on its 

financial statements. 

 

• IAS 23 Borrowing Costs  

The amendments clarify that an entity treats as part of general borrowings any borrowing originally made to 

develop a qualifying asset when substantially all of the activities necessary to prepare that asset for its intended 

use or sale are complete. 

 

An entity applies those amendments to borrowing costs incurred on or after the beginning of the annual 

reporting period in which the entity first applies those amendments. An entity applies those amendments for 

annual reporting periods beginning on or after 1 January 2019, with early application permitted. Since the 

Company’s current practice is in line with these amendments, the Company does not expect any effect on its 

financial statements. 

 

2.5 Significant accounting judgements, estimates and assumptions 

In the application of the Company’s accounting policies, the Directors are required to make judgments, 

estimates and assumptions about the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent 

from other sources. The estimates and associated assumptions are based on historical experience and other 

factors that are considered to be relevant. Actual results may differ from these estimates. 

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates 

are recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised if the revision affects only that period or in the period 

of the revision and future periods if the revision affects both current and future periods. 

    

Critical judgments in applying the Company’s accounting policies 

The following are the critical judgments, apart from those involving estimations (which are dealt with separately 

below), that the directors have made in the process of applying the Company’s accounting policies and that 

have the most significant effect on the amounts recognised in financial statements. 

 

Going Concern 

The financial statements have been prepared on the going concern basis and there is no intention to curtail 

business operations. Capital adequacy, profitability and liquidity ratios are continuously reviewed and 

appropriate action taken to ensure that there are no going concern threats to the operation of the Company. 

The Directors have made assessment of the Company's ability to continue as a going concern and have no 

reason to believe that the Company will not remain a going concern in the next 12 months ahead. 
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2.5 Significant accounting judgements, estimates and assumptions-continued 

 

Critical judgments in applying the Company’s accounting policies- continued 

Insurance product classification and contract liabilities 

The Company’s non-life insurance contracts are classified as insurance contracts. As permitted by IFRS 4, assets 

and liabilities of these contracts are accounted for under previously applied GAAP. Insurance contracts are 

those contracts when the Company (the insurer) has accepted significant insurance risk from another party (the 

policyholders) by agreeing to compensate the policyholders if a specified uncertain future event (the insured 

event) adversely affects the policyholders. As a general guideline, the Company determines whether it has 

significant insurance risk, by comparing benefits paid with benefits payable if the insured event did not occur. 

Insurance contracts can also transfer financial risk. Once a contract has been classified as an insurance 

contract, it remains an insurance contract for the remainder of its lifetime, even if the insurance risk reduces 

significantly during this period, unless all rights and obligations are extinguished or expire. 

 

Estimates and assumptions    

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the reporting 

date, that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities 

within the next financial year, are described below. The Company based its assumptions and estimates on 

parameters available when the financial statements were prepared. Existing circumstances and assumptions 

about future developments, however, may change due to market changes or circumstances arising beyond 

the control of the Company. Such changes are reflected in the assumptions when they occur. 

   

Fair value of financial instruments using valuation techniques 

The Directors use their judgment in selecting an appropriate valuation technique. Where possible, financial 

instruments are marked at prices quoted in active markets. In the current market environment, such price 

information is typically not available for all instruments and the company uses valuation techniques to measure 

such instruments. These techniques use “market observable inputs” where available, derived from similar assets 

in similar and active markets, from recent transaction prices for comparable items or from other observable 

market data. For positions where observable reference data are not available for some or all parameters the 

company estimates the non-market observable inputs used in its valuation models. 

Other financial instruments are valued using a discounted cash flow analysis based on assumptions supported, 

where possible, by observable market prices or rates although some assumptions are not supported by 

observable market prices or rates. 

 

Valuation of Non-life insurance contract liabilities  

For non-life insurance contract, estimates have to be made for the expected ultimate cost of all future payments 

attaching to incurred claims at the reporting date. These include incurred but not reported ("IBNR") claims. Due 

to the nature of insurance business, ultimate cost of claims is often not established with certainty until after the 

reporting date and therefore considerable judgement, experience and knowledge of the business is required 

by management in the estimation of amounts due to contract holders. Actual results may differ resulting in 

positive or negative change in estimated liabilities. 

   

The ultimate cost of outstanding claims is estimated by using a range of standard actuarial claims projection 

techniques, such as Loss ratio method and BCL methods. The BCL method assumes that past experience is 

indicative of future experience i.e. claims recorded to date will continue to develop in a similar manner in the 

future while Loss ratio method is used for classes with limited claims payments or history and therefore a BCL 

method would be inappropriate. The loss ratio method allows for an estimate of the average ultimate loss ratio 

which needs to be assumed, it uses the incurred and paid to date loss ratio that have been experienced to 

date in previous accident years. 

Additional qualitative judgement is required as significant uncertainties remain such as future changes in 

inflation, economic conditions, attitude to claiming, foreign exchange rates, judicial decisions and operational 

process.  
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2.5 Significant accounting judgements, estimates and assumptions-continued 

 

Estimates and assumptions- continued 

Valuation of Non-life insurance contract liabilities  

Similar judgements, estimates and assumptions are employed in the assessment of losses attaching to unearned 

premium exposures. The methods used are based on time apportionment principles together with significant 

judgement to assess the adequacy of theses liabilities and the attached uncertainty. The carrying value at the 

reporting date of non-life insurance contract liabilities is N4,319,769,000 (September 2020: N3,337,102 ,000). 

Further details on insurance contract liabilities are disclosed in Note 12 to the financial statements.  

 

Certain acquisition costs related to the sale of new policies are recorded as deferred acquisition costs (DAC) 

and are amortised to the profit or loss over time. If the assumptions relating to future profitability of these policies 

are not realised, the amortisation of these costs could be accelerated and this may also require additional 

impairment write-offs to the profit or loss. 

 

Deferred tax assets and liabilities    

The carrying value at the reporting date of net deferred tax liabilities is N453,539,000.00 (September 2020: 

N460,446,000).  Further details on taxes are disclosed in Note 18 to the financial statements. 

   

Valuation of pension benefit obligation    

The cost of defined benefit pension plans and other post-employments benefits and the present value of the 

pension obligation are determined using actuarial valuations. The actuarial valuation involves making 

assumptions about discount rates, expected rate of return on assets, future salary increases, mortality rates and 

future pension increases. Due to the complexity of the valuation, the underlying assumptions and its long-term 

nature, a defined benefit obligation is highly sensitive to changes in these assumptions. All assumptions are 

reviewed at each reporting date. Details of the key assumptions used in the estimates are contained in Note 16 

to the financial statements. 

   

The carrying value at the reporting date of gratuity benefit obligation is N186,667,000.00 

 

Valuation of investment properties 

The Company carries its investment properties at fair value, with changes in fair value being recognised in profit 

or loss. The Company engaged an independent valuation specialist to assess fair value as at 31 December 2020. 

A valuation methodology based on discounted cash flow model was used as there is a lack of comparable 

market data because of the nature of the properties.  

   

 

Impairment under IFRS 9 

The impairment requirements of IFRS 9 apply to all debt instruments that are measured at amortised cost. The 

determination of impairment loss and allowance moves from the incurred credit loss model whereby credit 

losses are recognised when a defined loss event occurs under IAS 39, to expected credit loss model under IFRS 

9, where expected credit losses are recognised upon initial recognition of the financial asset based on 

expectation of potential credit losses at the time of initial recognition. 
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2.5 Significant accounting judgements, estimates and assumptions-continued 

 

Estimates and assumptions- continued 

Impairment under IFRS 9- continued  

Staged Approach to the Determination of Expected Credit Losses 

 

IFRS 9 outlines a three-stage model for impairment based on changes in credit quality since initial recognition. 

These stages are as outlined below: 

 

Stage 1 The Company recognises a credit loss allowance at an amount equal to the 12 Months expected  

credit losses. This represents the portion of lifetime expected credit losses from default events that  

are expected within 12 months of the reporting date, assuming that credit risk has not increased  

significantly after the initial recognition. 

 

Stage 2 

 

The Company recognises a credit loss allowance at an amount equal to the lifetime expected  

credit losses (LTECL) for those financial assets that are considered to have experienced a  

significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition. This requires the computation of ECL  

based on Lifetime probabilities of default that represents the probability of a default occurring  

over the remaining lifetime of the financial assets. Allowance for credit losses is higher in this stage  

because of an increase in credit risk and the impact of a longer time horizon being considered  

compared to 12 months in stage 1. 

 

Stage 3 The Company recognises a loss allowance at an amount equal to life-time expected credit 

losses, reflecting a probability of default (PD) of 100% via the recoverable cash flows for the asset. 

For those financial assets that are credit impaired. The Company's definition of default is aligned 

with the regulatory definition. The treatment of the loans and other receivables in stage 3 remains 

substantially the same as the treatment of impaired financial assets under IAS 39 except for the 

portfolios of assets purchased or originated as credit impaired.  

 

The Company does not originate or purchase credit impaired loans or receivables. 

 

The determination of whether a financial asset is credit impaired focuses exclusively on default risk, without 

taking into consideration the effect of credit risk mitigants such as collateral or guarantees. Specifically, the 

financial asset is credit impaired and in stage 3 when: The Company considers the obligor is unlikely to pay its 

credit obligations to the company. The termination may include forbearance actions, where a concession has 

been granted to the borrower or economic or legal reasons that a qualitative indicators of credit impairment; 

or contractual payments of either principal or interest by the obligor are pass due by more than 90 days. 

 

For financial assets considered to be credit impaired, the ECL allowance covers the amount of loss the Company 

is expected to suffer. The estimation of ECLs is done on a case by case basis for non-homogenous portfolios, or 

by applying portfolio-based parameters to individual financial assets in this portfolio by the Company’s ECL 

model for homogenous portfolios. 

 

Forecast of future economic conditions when calculating ECLs are considered. The lifetime expected losses are 

estimated based on the probability – weighted present value of the difference between: 

 

1) The contractual cash flows that are due to the Company under the contract; and 

2) The cash flows that the Company expects to receive. 
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2.5 Significant accounting judgements, estimates and assumptions-continued 

 

Estimates and assumptions- continued 

Impairment under IFRS 9- continued 

Elements of ECL models that are considered accounting judgements and estimates include: 

• The Company’s criteria for assessing if there has been a significant increase in credit risk and so allowances  

   for  financial assets should be measured on a LTECL basis and the qualitative assessment. 

• The development of ECL models, including the various formulas and the choice of inputs Determination of 

 associations between macroeconomic scenarios and, economic inputs, such as unemployment levels and 

 collateral values, and the effect on PDs, EADs and LGDs 

• Selection of forward-looking macroeconomic scenarios and their probability weightings, to derive the  

 economic  inputs into the ECL models. 

 

Expected lifetime: 

The expected life time of a financial asset is a key factor in determine the lifetime expected credit losses. Lifetime 

expected credit losses represents default events over the expected life of a financial asset. The company 

measures expected credit losses considering the risk of default over the maximum contractual period (including 

any borrower’s extension option) over which it is exposed to credit risk. 

 

2.6 Regulatory authority and financial reporting 

The Company is regulated by the National Insurance Commission (NAICOM) under the National Insurance Act 

of Nigeria. The Act specifies certain provisions which have impact on financial reporting as follows: 

 

i. Section 20 (1a) provides that provisions for unexpired risks shall be calculated on a time apportionment 

basis of the risks accepted in the year; 

ii. Section 20 (1b) which requires the provision of 10 percent for outstanding claims in respect of claims 

incurred but not reported at the end of the year under review. See note 3(m)(vi) on accounting policy for 

outstanding claims; 

iii. Sections 21 (1a) and 22 (1b) require maintenance of contingency reserves for general and life businesses 

respectively at specified rates as set out under note (23) and note 3(t) to cover fluctuations in securities 

and variation in statistical estimates; 

iv. Section 22 (1a) requires the maintenance of a general reserve known as life fund which shall be credited 

with an amount equal to the net liabilities on policies in force at the time of the actuarial valuation as set 

out under note 15(b). The valuation is done annually by the Company, using independent experts; 

v. Section 24 requires the maintenance of a margin of solvency to be calculated in accordance with the Act 

as set out under note 49.1; 

vi. Section 10(3) requires insurance companies in Nigeria to deposit 10 percent of the minimum paid-up share 

capital with the Central Bank of Nigeria as set out under note 14; 

vii. Section 25 (1) requires an insurance company operating in Nigeria to invest and hold invested in Nigeria 

assets equivalent to not less than the amount of policy holders' funds in such accounts of the insurer. See 

note 51 for assets allocation that covers policy holders' funds. 

 

The Financial Reporting Council of Nigeria Act No. 6, 2011 which requires the adoption of IFRS by all listed and 

significant public interest entities provides that in matters of financial reporting, if there is any inconsistency 

between the Financial Reporting Council of Nigeria Act No. 6, 2011 and other Acts which are listed in section 

59(1) of the Financial Reporting Council of Nigeria Act No. 6, 2011, the Financial Reporting Council of Nigeria 

Act No. 6, 2011 shall prevail. The Financial Reporting Council of Nigeria acting under the provisions of the 

Financial Reporting Council of Nigeria Act No. 6, 2011 has promulgated IFRS as the national financial reporting 

framework for Nigeria. Consequently, the following provision of the National Insurance Act, 2003 which conflict 

with the provisions of IFRS have not been adopted: 

 

i) Section 22(1a) which requires additional 25 percent of net premium to general reserve fund. See note 3(m) (ii) 

on accounting policy for unexpired risk and unearned premium. 
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2.7 Foreign currency translation 

(a) Functional and presentation currency 

Items included in the financial statements are measured using the currency of the primary economic 

environment in which the entity operates (‘the functional currency’). The financial statements are presented in 

Nigerian Naira which is the Company’s functional and presentation currency.  

   

(b) Transactions and balances 

Foreign currency transactions are transactions denominated, or that require settlement, in a foreign currency 

and these are translated into the functional currency spot rate prevailing at the dates of the transactions. 

 

Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated at the functional currency spot 

rate of exchange prevailing at the reporting date. Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting from the 

retranslation and settlement of these items are recognised in profit or loss.   

2.8 Cash and cash equivalents 

For the purposes of the statement of cash flows, cash comprises cash balances and deposits with banks net of 

overdraft. Cash equivalents comprise highly liquid investments (including money market funds) that are readily 

convertible to known amounts of cash and which are subject to insignificant risk of changes in value with original 

maturities of three months or less being used by the Company in the management of its short-term 

commitments. Cash and cash equivalents are carried at amortised cost in the statement of financial position. 

 

2.9 Financial instruments 

 

2.9.1 Recognition and initial measurement  

 

i. Initial recognition 

All financial assets and liabilities are initially recognized on the trade date, i.e., the date that the Company 

becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument. The Company uses trade date accounting for 

regular way contracts when recording financial assets transactions.   

 

A financial asset or financial liability is measured initially at fair value plus or minus, for an item not at fair value 

through profit or loss, direct and incremental transaction costs that are directly attributable to its acquisition or 

issue. Transaction costs of financial assets and liabilities carried at fair value through profit or loss are expensed 

in profit or loss at initial recognition. 

 

ii. Day 1 profit or loss 

When the transaction price of the instrument differs from the fair value at origination and the fair value is based 

on a valuation technique using only inputs observable in market transactions, the Company recognises the 

difference between the transaction price and fair value in Net fair value (loss)/gain on financial assets. In those 

cases where fair value is based on models for which some of the inputs are not observable, the difference 

between the transaction price and the fair value is deferred and is only recognised in profit or loss when the 

inputs become observable, or when the instrument is derecognised. 

 

iii. Amortised cost and gross carrying amount 

The amortised cost of a financial asset or financial liability is the amount at which the financial asset or financial 

liability is measured on initial recognition minus the principal repayments, plus or minus the cumulative 

amortisation using the effective interest method of any difference between the initial amount and the maturity 

amount and, for financial assets, adjusted for any expected credit loss allowance. 

 

The gross carrying amount of a financial asset is the amortised cost of a financial asset before adjusting for any 

expected credit loss allowance. 
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iv. Effective interest method 

The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash payments or receipts through 

the expected life of the financial asset or financial liability to the gross carrying amount of a financial asset (i.e. 

its amortised cost before any impairment allowance) or to the amortised cost of a financial liability. The 

calculation does not consider expected credit losses and includes transaction costs, premiums or discounts and 

fees and points paid or received that are integral to the effective interest rate, such as origination fees. 

 

2.9.2 Classification of financial instruments 

  

a. Policy applicable from 1 January 2018  

The Company classifies its financial assets under IFRS 9, into the following measurement categories:  

• Those to be measured at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVOCI) without 

recycling (equity instrument),  

• Those to be measured at fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL) (equity instrument); and  

• Those to be measured at amortised cost (debt instrument).  

 

The classification depends on the Company’s business model (i.e. business model test) for managing financial 

assets and the contractual terms of the financial assets cash flows (i.e. solely payments of principal and interest 

– SPPI test).  The Company also classifies its financial liabilities at amortized cost. Management determines the 

classification of the financial instruments at initial recognition. 

 

b. Policy applicable prior to 1 January 2018  

The company classifies its financial assets into the following categories: financial assets at fair value through 

profit or loss, held to maturity financial assets, loans and receivables and available for sale financial assets. The 

classification is determined by management at initial recognition and depends on the purpose for which the 

investments were acquired. The company also classifies its financial liabilities as other financial liabilities 

category. 

 

2.9.3 Subsequent measurements  

a. Financial assets - policy applicable from 1 January 2018  

The subsequent measurement of financial assets depends on its initial classification:  

(i) Debt instruments  

Financial assets at amortised cost: A financial asset is measured at amortised cost if it meets both of the following 

conditions and is not designated as at FVTPL:  

 

• The asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets to collect contractual cash 

flows; and  

• The contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely 

payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.  

 

The gain or loss on a debt investment that is subsequently measured at amortised cost and is not part of a 

hedging relationship is recognised in profit or loss when the asset is derecognised or impaired. Interest income 

from these financial assets is determined using the effective interest method and reported in profit or loss as 

‘Interest income’. The amortised cost of a financial instrument is defined as the amount at which it was measured 

at initial recognition minus principal repayments, plus or minus the cumulative amortisation using the 'effective 

interest method' of any difference between that initial amount and the maturity amount, and minus any loss 

allowance. The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortised cost of a financial instrument 

(or group of instruments) and of allocating the interest income or expense over the relevant period. The effective 

interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash payments or receipts over the expected life 

of the instrument or, when appropriate, a shorter period, to the instrument's net carrying amount.   
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(ii) Equity instruments  

The Company subsequently measures all equity investments at fair value. The Company has designated its 

unquoted equity instruments to be measured at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVOCI) since 

the investments are not held for trading. For these instruments, the Company present subsequent changes in 

fair value in other comprehensive income (OCI). This election is made on an investment-by-investment basis at 

the initial recognition of the instrument. Where the Company’s management has elected to present fair value 

gains and losses on equity investments in other comprehensive income, there is no subsequent reclassification 

of fair value gains and losses to profit or loss. Dividends from such investments continue to be recognised in profit 

or loss as dividend income (under Investment income) when the company’s right to receive payments is 

established unless the dividend clearly represents a recovery of part of the cost of the investment. All other 

equity financial assets are classified as measured at FVTPL. Changes in the fair value of financial assets at fair 

value through profit or loss are recognised in Net fair value gain/ (loss) gain on financial assets in the profit or 

loss.    

 

Business Model assessment 

The Company assess the objective of a business model in which an asset is held at a portfolio level because this 

best reflects the way the business is managed and information is provided to management. The information 

considered includes: 

 

1. The stated policies and objectives for the portfolio and the operation of those policies in practice. In 

particular, whether management's strategy focuses on earning contractual interest revenue, maintaining 

a particular interest rate profile, matching the duration of the financial assets to the duration of the 

liabilities that are funding those assets or realising cash flows through the sale of the assets; 

 

2. how the performance of the portfolio is evaluated and reported to the Insurer's management; 

 

3. the risks that affect the performance of the business model (and the financial assets held within that 

business model) and how those risks are managed; 

 

4. How managers of the business are compensated - e.g. whether compensation is based on the fair value 

of the assets managed or the contractual cash flows collected. 

 

5. The frequency, volume and timing of sales in prior periods, the reasons for such sales and its expectations 

about future sales activity. However, information about sales activity is not considered in isolation, but as 

part of an overall assessment of how the Insurer's stated objective for managing financial assets is 

achieved and how cash flows are realized. 

 

The business model assessment is based on reasonably expected scenarios without taking 'worst case' or 'stress 

case’ scenarios into account. If cash flows after initial recognition are realised in a way that is different from the 

Company's original expectations, the Company does not change the classification of the remaining financial 

assets held in that business model, but incorporates such information when assessing newly originated or newly 

purchased financial assets going forward. 

 

Solely payments of principal and interest (SPPI) assessment 

 

If a financial asset is held in either a Hold to Collect or Hold to Collect and Sell model, then an assessment is 

determined whether contractual cash flows are solely payments of principal and interest on principal amount 

outstanding at initial recognition is required to determine the classification. Contractual cash flows that are SPPI 

on the principal amount outstanding are considered as basic lending arrangement with interest as 

consideration for the time value of money and the credit risk associated with the principal amount outstanding 

during the tenor of the agreed arrangement. Other basic lending risks like Liquidity risk and cost of administration 

associated with holding the financial asset for the specified tenor and the profit margin that is consistent with a 

basic lending arrangement. 
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b. Financial assets - policy applicable prior to 1 January 2018  

 

i. Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss  

A financial asset is classified at fair value through profit or loss if it is classified as held for trading or is designated 

at fair value through profit or loss upon initial recognition. The entity has no assets classified as held-for-trading at 

the end of the year. The entity has designated certain financial assets upon initial recognition at fair value through 

profit or loss (fair value option). This designation cannot subsequently be changed.  Financial assets are 

designated at fair value through profit or loss if the Company manages such investments and makes purchase 

and sale decisions based on their fair value in accordance with the Company’s documented risk management 

or investment strategy. The investments are carried at fair value, with gains or losses arising from changes in this 

value recognized in profit or loss in the period in which they arise. Composition/details are disclosed in notes.  

 

ii. Held-to-maturity  

The Company classifies financial assets as held to maturity when the Company has positive intent and ability to 

hold the securities to maturity. Held-to-maturity investments are recognized initially at fair value plus any directly 

attributable transaction costs. Subsequent to initial recognition, held-to-maturity investments are measured at 

amortized cost using the effective interest method, less any impairment losses. Interest on held-to- maturity 

investments is included in the profit or loss and are reported as ‘interest income’.  

 

iii. Available-for-sale financial assets  

Available-for-sale financial assets are non-derivative financial assets that are classified as available-for-sale or are 

not classified in any of the two preceding categories which may be sold in response to the need for liquidity or 

changes in interest rates, exchange rates or equity prices. These investments are initially recognised at fair value. 

After initial measurement, available-for-sale financial assets are subsequently measured at fair value. Fair value 

gains and losses are reported as a separate component in other comprehensive income until the investment is 

derecognised or the investment is determined to be impaired. On derecognition or impairment, the cumulative 

fair value gains and losses previously reported in equity are transferred to profit or loss.  

 

iv. Loans and receivables  

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments that are not 

quoted in an active market other than:  

• Those that the Company intends to sell in the short term which are reclassified as fair value through profit 

or loss and those that the Company upon initial recognition designates at fair value through profit or loss.  

• Those that the Company upon initial recognition designates as Available-for-sale  

• Those for which the holder may not recover substantially all of its initial investment other than because of 

credit risk.  

 

They include:  

 

(a) Trade receivables  

Trade receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted 

in an active market. They are mainly receivables arising from insurance contracts. Trade receivables are 

recognised initially at fair value plus any directly attributable transaction costs. Subsequent to initial recognition, 

trade receivables are measured at amortized cost less any impairment losses. They include receivables from 

Brokers and Co-insurance companies.  

 

(b) Other receivables  

Other receivables are made up of amounts due from parties which are not directly linked to insurance or 

investment contracts. Other receivables are stated after deductions of amount considered bad or doubtful of 

recovery. When a debt is deemed not collectible, it is written-off against the related provision or directly to the 

profit and loss account to the extent not previously provided for. Any subsequent recovery of written-off debts is 

credited to the profit and loss account. 
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c. Financial liabilities - policy applicable for current and comparative periods  

 

A financial liability is classified at fair value through profit or loss if it is classified as held-for-trading or designated 

as such on initial recognition. Directly attributable transaction costs on these instruments are recognised in profit 

or loss as incurred. Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss are measured at fair value and changes 

therein, including any interest expense, are recognised in profit or loss.  

 

Other non-derivative financial liabilities are initially measured at fair value less any directly attributable 

transaction costs. Subsequent to initial recognition, these liabilities are measured at amortised cost using the 

effective interest method.  

 

 

2.9.4 Reclassifications 

 

(i) Policy applicable from 1 January 2018  

The Company reclassifies financial assets when and only when its business model for managing those assets 

changes. The reclassification takes place from the start of the first reporting period following the change. Such 

changes are expected to be very infrequent and must be significant to the Company’s operations.   

 

When reclassification occurs, the Company reclassifies all affected financial assets in accordance with the new 

business model. Reclassification is applied prospectively from the ‘reclassification date’. Reclassification date is 

‘the first day of the first reporting period following the change in business model. Gains, losses or interest 

previously recognised are not restated when reclassification occurs.  

 

Financial assets are not reclassified subsequent to their initial recognition, except in the period after the  

Company changes its business model for managing financial assets that are debt instruments. A change in the 

objective of the Company’s business occurs only when the Company either begins or ceases to perform an 

activity that is significant to its operations (e.g., via acquisition or disposal of a business line).  

 

The following are not considered to be changes in the business model:  

• A change in intention related to particular financial assets (even in circumstances of significant changes 

in market conditions) 

• A temporary disappearance of a particular market for financial assets  

• A transfer of financial assets between parts of the entity with different business models  

 

Financial liabilities are not reclassified after initial classification.   

 

2.9.4 Modifications of financial assets and financial liabilities 

 

(i) Financial assets  

If the terms of a financial asset are modified, the Company evaluates whether the cash flows of the modified 

asset are substantially different. If the cash flows are substantially different, then the contractual rights to cash 

flows from the original financial asset are deemed to have expired. In this case, the original financial asset is 

derecognised and a new financial asset is recognised at fair value. Any difference between the amortized cost 

and the present value of the estimated future cash flows of the modified asset or consideration received on 

derecognition is recorded as a separate line item in profit or loss as. If the cash flows of the modified asset carried 

at amortised cost are not substantially different, then the modification does not result in derecognition of the 

financial asset. In this case, the Company recalculates the gross carrying amount of the financial asset as the 

present value of the renegotiated or modified contractual cash flows that are discounted at the financial asset’s 

original effective interest rate (or credit-adjusted effective interest rate for purchased or originated credit-

impaired financial assets). The amount arising from adjusting the gross carrying amount is recognised as a 

modification gain or loss in profit or loss as part of impairment loss on financial assets for the year.   
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(ii) Financial liabilities  

The Company derecognizes a financial liability when its terms are modified and the cash flows of the modified 

liability are substantially different. This occurs when the discounted present value of the cash flows under the 

new terms, including any fees paid net of any fees received and discounted using the original effective interest 

rate, is at least 10 per cent different from the discounted present value of the remaining cash flows of the original 

financial liability. In this case, a new financial liability based on the modified terms is recognised at fair value. 

The difference between the carrying amount of the financial liability extinguished and the new financial liability 

with modified terms is recognised in profit or loss. If an exchange of debt instruments or modification of terms is 

accounted for as an extinguishment, any costs or fees incurred are recognised as part of the gain or loss on the 

extinguishment. If the exchange or modification is not accounted for as an extinguishment (i.e. the modified 

liability is not substantially different), any costs or fees incurred adjust the carrying amount of the liability and are 

amortised over the remaining term of the modified liability. 

 

2.9.5 Impairment of financial assets 

 

(i) Policy applicable from to 1 January 2018 

The Company recognises an allowance for expected credit losses (ECLs) for all debt instruments not held at fair 

value through profit or loss. ECLs are based on the difference between the contractual cash flows due in 

accordance with the contract and all the cash flows that the Company expects to receive, discounted at an 

approximation of the original effective interest rate. The expected cash flows will include cash flows from the 

sale of collateral held or other credit enhancements that are integral to the contractual terms. ECLs are 

recognised in two stages. For credit exposures for which there has not been a significant increase in credit risk 

since initial recognition, ECLs are provided for credit losses that result from default events that are possible within 

the next 12-months (a 12-month ECL). For those credit exposures for which there has been a significant increase 

in credit risk since initial recognition, a loss allowance is required for credit losses expected over the remaining 

life of the exposure, irrespective of the timing of the default (a lifetime ECL). 

 

For debt instruments at amortised cost, the Company applies the low credit risk simplification. At every reporting 

date, the Company evaluates whether the debt instrument is considered to have low credit risk using all 

reasonable and supportable information that is available without undue cost or effort. In making that evaluation, 

the Company reassesses the credit rating of the debt instrument by international credit rating agencies like S&P, 

Moodys and Fitch as well as local ratings by Agusto and Co. It is the Company’s policy to measure ECLs on such 

instruments on a 12-month basis. Where the credit risk of any bond deteriorates, the Company will sell the bond 

and purchase bonds meeting the required investment grade. 

 

The Company’s debt instruments at amortised cost comprise quoted sovereign bonds, corporate bonds, and 

others that are graded in the top investment category. The Company's fixed income investment portfolio 

consists of Investment grade and high speculative bonds and, therefore, are considered to be low credit risk 

investments. It is the Company’s policy to measure ECLs on such instruments on a 12-month basis. However, 

when there has been a significant increase in credit risk since origination, the allowance will be based on the 

lifetime ECL. The Company uses the ratings from the International Credit Rating Agencies both to determine 

whether the debt instrument has significantly increased in credit risk and to estimate ECLs. 

 

The Company considers a financial asset in default when contractual payments are 90 days past due. However, 

in certain cases, the Company may also consider a financial asset to be in default when internal or external 

information indicates that the Company is unlikely to receive the outstanding contractual amounts in full before 

taking into account any credit enhancements held by the Company. A financial asset is written off when there 

is no reasonable expectation of recovering the contractual cash flows. 
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(ii) Policy applicable prior to 1 January 2018  

 a. Financial assets carried at amortised cost  

The Company assesses at each end of the reporting period whether there is objective evidence that a financial 

asset or group of financial assets is impaired. A financial asset or group of financial assets is impaired and 

impairment losses are incurred only if there is objective evidence of impairment as a result of one or more events 

that have occurred after the initial recognition of the asset (a ‘loss event’) and that loss event (or events) has 

an impact on the estimated future cash flows of the financial asset or group of financial assets that can be 

reliably estimated. Objective evidence that a financial asset or group of assets is impaired includes observable 

data that comes to the attention of the Company from the following events:  

• Default or delinquency by a debtor;  

• Restructuring of an amount due to the Company on terms that the Company would not consider favourable;  

• Indications that a debtor or issuer will enter bankruptcy;  

• The disappearance of an active market for the security because of financial difficulties; and  

• Observable data indicating that there is a measurable decrease in the estimated future cash flow from a 

group of financial assets since the initial recognition of those assets, although the decrease cannot yet be 

identified with the individual financial assets in the group.  

 

The Company first assesses whether objective evidence of impairment exists individually for financial assets that 

are individually significant. If the Company determines that no objective evidence of impairment exists for an 

individually assessed financial asset, whether significant or not, it includes the asset in a group of financial assets 

with similar credit risk characteristics and collectively assesses them for impairment. Assets that are individually 

assessed for impairment and for which an impairment loss is or continues to be recognised are not included in 

a collective assessment of impairment. If there is objective evidence that an impairment loss has been incurred 

on loans and receivables or held-to-maturity investments carried at amortised cost, the amount of the loss is 

measured as the difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the present value of estimated future 

cash flows (excluding future credit losses that have been incurred) discounted at the financial asset’s original 

effective interest rate. The carrying amount of the asset is reduced, and the amount of the loss is recognised in 

the statement of profit of loss. If a held-to-maturity investment or a loan has a variable interest rate, the discount 

rate for measuring any impairment loss is the original effective interest rate determined under contract. As is 

practically expedient, the Company may measure impairment on the basis of an instrument’s fair value using 

an observable market price.  

 

For the purpose of a collective evaluation of impairment, financial assets are grouped on the basis of similar 

credit risk characteristics. Those characteristics are relevant to the estimation of future cash flows for groups of 

such assets by being indicative of the issuer’s ability to pay all amounts due under the contractual terms of the 

debt instrument being evaluated.  If in a subsequent period, the amount of the impairment loss decreases and 

the decrease can be related objectively to an event occurring after the impairment was recognised, the 

previously recognised impairment loss is reversed by adjusting the assets. The amount of the reversal is 

recognised in the statement of profit or loss.  

 

(i) Trade receivables  

These are initially recognised at fair value and subsequently measured at amortised cost less provision for 

impairment. A provision for impairment is made when there is objective evidence (such as the probability of 

insolvency, significant financial difficulties on the part of the counterparty or default or significant delay in 

payment - over 30 days) that the Company will not be able to collect the entire amount due under the original 

terms of the invoice. Allowances for impairment are made based on “incurred loss model” which consider 

premiums outstanding and not received within one month subsequent to the year-end as lost, given default for 

each customer and probability of default for the sectors in which the customer belongs. The amount of such a 

provision being the difference between the carrying amount and the present value of the future expected cash 

flows associated with the impaired receivable. For amounts due from policy holders and reinsurers, which are 

reported net, such provisions are recorded in a separate impairment account with the loss being recognised in 

statement of profit or loss. On confirmation that the amounts receivable will not be collectable, the gross 

carrying value of the asset is written off against the associated provision. Any subsequent recoveries are credited 

to the statement of profit or loss in the period the recoveries are made.  
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(b) Assets classified as available-for-sale  

The Company assesses at each date of the statement of financial position whether there is objective evidence 

that a financial asset or a group of financial assets is impaired. In the case of equity investments classified as 

available-for-sale, a significant or prolonged decline in the fair value of the security below its cost is an objective 

evidence of impairment resulting in the recognition of an impairment loss. In this respect, a decline of 20% or 

more is regarded as significant, and a period of 1 year or longer is considered to be prolonged. If any such 

quantitative evidence exists for available-for-sale financial assets, the asset is considered for impairment, taking 

qualitative evidence into account. The cumulative loss – measured as the difference between the acquisition 

cost and the current fair value, less any impairment loss on those financial assets previously recognised in profit 

or loss is removed from equity and recognised in the statement of profit or loss.  

 

Impairment losses recognised in the statement of profit or loss on equity instruments are not reversed through 

the profit or loss. If in a subsequent period the fair value of a debt instrument classified as available for sale 

increases and the increase can be objectively related to an event occurring after the impairment loss was 

recognised in profit or loss, the impairment loss is reversed through the profit or loss. 

 

2.9.6 Write-off - policy applicable for current and comparative periods 

After a full evaluation of a non-performing exposure, in the event that either one or all of the following conditions 

apply, such exposure is recommended for write-off (either partially or in full): 

 

• Continued contact with the customer is impossible;  

• Recovery cost is expected to be higher than the outstanding debt;  

• Amount obtained from realization of credit collateral security leaves a balance of the debt; or  

• It is reasonably determined that no further recovery on the facility is possible.  

 

All credit facility write-offs require endorsement by the Board Credit and Risk Committee, as defined by the 

Company. Credit write-off approval is documented in writing and properly initialed by the Board Credit and Risk 

Committee. The gross carrying amount of an asset is written off (either fully or partially) to the extent that there 

is no realistic prospect of recovery. This is generally the case when the Company determines that the 

counterparty does not have assets or sources of income that could generate sufficient cash flows to repay the 

amount subject to write off. However, the financial assets that are subjected to write off could still be subject to 

enforcement activities in other to comply with the Company's procedures for recovery of amount due. 

 

A write-off constitutes a derecognition event. The write-off amount is used to reduce the carrying amount of the 

financial asset. However, financial assets that are written off could still be subject to enforcement activities in 

order to comply with the Company's procedures for recovery of amount due. Whenever amounts are recovered 

on previously written-off credit exposures, such amount recovered is recognised as income on a cash basis only.  

 

2.9.6 Forward looking information  

In its ECL models, the Company relies on a broad range of forward-looking information as economic inputs, 

such as:  

• GDP growth  

• Unemployment rates  

• Inflation rates  

• Foreign exchange rates  

• Market growth rates  

 

The inputs and models used for calculating ECLs may not always capture all characteristics of the market at 

the date of the financial statements. To reflect this, qualitative adjustments or overlays are occasionally made 

as temporary adjustments when such differences are significantly material. 
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2.9.7 Derecognition of financial assets - policy applicable for current and comparative periods  

The Company derecognises a financial asset when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the financial 

asset expire, or when it transfers the rights to receive the contractual cash flows on the financial asset in a 

transaction in which substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of the financial asset are transferred or 

in which the Company neither transfers nor retains substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership and it does 

not retain control of the financial asset. Any interest in such derecognised asset financial asset that is created or 

retained by the Company is recognised as a separate asset or liability. Impaired debts are derecognised when 

they are assessed as uncollectible. 

 

On derecognition of a financial asset, the difference between the carrying amount of the asset (or the carrying 

amount allocated to the portion of the asset transferred), and consideration received (including any new asset 

obtained less any new liability assumed) is recognised in profit or loss. 

 

2.9.8 Derecognition of financial liabilities - policy applicable for current and comparative periods  

The Company derecognises financial liabilities when, and only when its contractual obligations are discharged 

or cancelled, or expired. When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same lender on 

substantially different terms or the terms of an existing liability are substantially modified, such an exchange or 

modification is treated as a derecognition of the original liability and the recognition of a new liability, and the 

difference in the respective carrying amounts is recognized in profit or loss. 

 

2.9.9 Offsetting financial instruments - policy applicable for current and comparative periods 

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount reported in the statement of financial position only 

when there is a legally enforceable right to offset the recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle on 

a net basis, or to realize the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.  

 

2.10 Income and expenses (Revenue recognition) 

(i) Policy applicable from 1 January 2018  

Interest income and expenses are recognised in profit or loss using the effective interest method. The effective 

interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash payments or receipts through the expected 

life of the financial instrument to:  

• The gross carrying amount of the financial asset; or  

• The amortised cost of the financial liability.  

 

When calculating the effective interest rate for financial instruments other than credit-impaired assets, the 

Company estimates future cash flows considering all contractual terms of the financial instrument, but not 

expected credit losses. For credit-impaired financial assets, a credit-adjusted effective interest rate is calculated 

using estimated future cash flows including expected credit losses. The EIR (and therefore, the amortised cost of 

the asset) is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition, fees and costs that are 

an integral part of the EIR. The Company recognizes interest income using a rate of return that represents the 

best estimate of a constant rate of return over the expected life of the loan. Hence, it recognises the effect of 

potentially different interest rates charged at various stages, and other characteristics of the product life cycle 

(including prepayments, penalty interest and charges).  

 

If expectations regarding the cash flows on the financial asset are revised for reasons other than credit risk. The 

adjustment is booked as a positive or negative adjustment to the carrying amount of the asset in the statement 

of financial position with an increase or reduction in interest income. The adjustment is subsequently amortised 

through interest income in profit or loss. 

   

a. Amortised cost and gross carrying amount  

The amortised cost of a financial asset or financial liability is the amount at which the financial asset or financial 

liability is measured on initial recognition minus the principal repayments, plus or minus the cumulative 

amortisation using the effective interest method of any difference between the initial amount and the maturity 

amount and, for financial assets, adjusted for any expected credit loss allowance (or impairment allowance 

before 1 January 2018). The gross carrying amount of a financial asset is the amortised cost of a financial asset 

before adjusting for any expected credit loss allowance.  
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b. Calculation of interest income and expenses  

The Company calculates interest income and expense by applying the effective interest rate to the gross 

carrying amount of the asset (when the asset is not credit-impaired) or to the amortised cost of the liability.  

However, for financial asset that have become credit-impaired subsequent to initial recognition and is, 

therefore, regarded as ‘Stage 3’, the Company calculates interest income by applying the effective interest 

rate to the net amortised cost of the financial asset. If the financial assets cures and is no longer credit-impaired, 

then the Company reverts to calculating interest income on a gross basis. 

 

(Policy applicable prior to 1 January 2018) 

Interest income is recognised in profit or loss as it accrues and is calculated by using the effective interest rate 

method. Fees and commissions that are an integral part of the effective yield of the financial asset or liability 

are recognised as an adjustment to the effective interest rate of the instrument. Dividend income for equities is 

recognised when the right to receive payment is established, this is the ex-dividend date for equity securities. 

 

2.11 Impairment of non-financial assets 

The carrying amounts of the Company’s non-financial assets other than deferred tax assets are reviewed at each 

reporting date to determine whether there is any indication of impairment. If any such indication exists, then the 

asset’s recoverable amount is estimated.  

 

An impairment loss is recognised if the carrying amount of an asset or its cash-generating unit exceeds its 

recoverable amount. A cash-generating unit is the smallest identifiable asset group that generates cash flows 

that are largely independent from other assets and groups. Impairment losses are recognised in profit or loss. 

Impairment losses recognised in respect of cash-generating units are allocated first to reduce the carrying 

amount of any goodwill allocated to the units and then to reduce the carrying amount of the other assets in the 

unit (group of units) on a pro rata basis.  

 

The recoverable amount of an asset or cash-generating unit is the greater of its value in use and its fair value less 

costs to sell. In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using 

a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific 

to the asset. Impairment losses recognised in prior periods are assessed at each reporting date for any indications 

that the loss has decreased or no longer exists. An impairment loss is reversed if there has been a change in the 

estimates used to determine the recoverable amount.  

 

An impairment loss is reversed only to the extent that the asset’s carrying amount does not exceed the carrying 

amount that would have been determined, net of depreciation or amortisation, if no impairment loss had been 

recognised. Reversals of impairment losses are recognised in profit or loss.  

 

2.12 Reinsurance receivables 

Reinsurance assets consist of short-term balances due from reinsurers, as well as longer term receivables that are 

dependent on the expected claims and benefits arising under the related reinsurance contracts. Amounts 

recoverable from or due to reinsurers are measured consistently with the amounts associated with the reinsurance 

contracts and in compliance with the terms of each reinsurance contract. 

 

The reinsurers' share of unearned premiums (i.e. the reinsurance assets) are recognised as an asset using principles 

consistent with the Company's method for determining unearned premium liability. The amount reflected on the 

statement of financial position is on a gross basis to indicate the extent of credit risk related to the reinsurance 

and its obligations to policy holders.  

 

The Company assesses its reinsurance assets for impairment at each statement of financial position date. If there 

is objective evidence that the reinsurance asset is impaired, the Company reduces the carrying amount of the 

reinsurance asset to its recoverable amount and recognises that impairment loss in the profit or loss. The Company 

gathers the objective evidence that a reinsurance asset is impaired using the same process adopted for financial 

assets held at amortised cost.  
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2.13 Deferred acquisition costs (DAC) 

 

Commissions and other acquisition costs that are related to securing new contracts and renewing existing 

contracts are capitalised as Deferred Acquisition Costs (DAC) if they are separately identifiable, can be 

measured reliably and it is probable that they will be recovered. All other costs are recognised as expenses when 

incurred. The DAC is subsequently amortised over the life of the contracts in line with premium revenue using 

assumptions consistent with those used in calculating unearned premium. It is calculated by applying to the 

acquisition expenses the ratio of unearned premium to written premium. The DAC asset is tested for impairment 

annually and written down when it is not expected to be fully recovered.  

 

2.14 Finance lease 

 

Finance lease are recognised when the company transfers substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of 

the leased assets to the leasee. Investment in finance lease at commencement is initially recorded as an asset 

and a liability at the lower of the fair value of the asset and the present value of the minimum lease payments 

(discounted at the interest rate implicit in the lease, if practicable, or else at the entity's incremental borrowing 

rate. The finance lease is recorded as a receivable, at an amount equal to the net investment in the lease. 

 

Interest income on investment in finance lease is recognised in the profit or loss as investment income in the 

period the interest is due receivable. An investment in finance lease is impaired if the carrying amount of the 

investment exceeds its recoverable or net realisable amount. 

 

2.15 Investment property 

 

Investment property is property (land or a building or part of a building or both) held (by the owner or by the 

lessee under a finance lease) to earn rentals or for capital appreciation or both. Investment property, including 

interest in leasehold land, is initially recognised at cost. Subsequently, investment property is carried at fair value 

at the reporting date determined by annual valuations carried out by external registered valuers. Gains or losses 

arising from changes in the fair value are included in determining the profit or loss for the year to which they 

relate.  

 

Subsequent expenditure on investment property where such expenditure increases the future economic value 

in excess of the original assessed standard of performance is added to the carrying amount of the investment 

property. All other subsequent expenditure is recognised as expense in the year in which it is incurred. 

 

Investment properties are derecognised when either they have been disposed of or when the investment 

property is permanently withdrawn from use and no future economic benefit is expected from its disposal. On 

disposal of an investment property, the difference between the disposal proceeds and the carrying amount is 

charged or credited to comprehensive income. 

 

Transfers are made to or from investment property only when there is a change in use. For a transfer from 

investment property to owner occupied property, the deemed cost for subsequent accounting is the fair value 

at the date of change in use. If an owner-occupied property becomes an investment property, the Company 

accounts for such property in accordance with the policy stated under property, plant and equipment up to the 

date of the change in use.  

 

2.16 Intangible assets 

 

Intangible assets comprise computer software purchased from third parties. They are measured at cost less 

accumulated amortisation and accumulated impairment losses. Purchased computer software are capitalised 

on the basis of the costs incurred to acquire and bring into use the specific software. These costs are amortised 

on straight line basis over the useful life of the asset.     
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Intangible assets- continued          

Expenditure that is reliably measurable and meets the definition of an assets is capitalized.  

   

Amortisation is recognised in profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the estimated useful life of the software, 

from the date that it is available for use. The estimated useful life of software is 10years. The residual values and 

useful lives are reviewed at the end of each reporting period and adjusted, if appropriate. An Intangible asset’s 

carrying amount is written down immediately to its recoverable amount if the asset’s carrying amount is greater 

than its estimated recoverable amount.          

  

The estimated useful lives for the current and comparative period are as follows: 

      

Computer software     10 years     

 

2.17 Property, Plant and Equipment         

(a) Recognition and measurement          

All property, plant and equipment are initially recorded at cost. They are subsequently stated at cost less 

accumulated depreciation and impairment losses. Historical costs include expenditure that is directly attributable 

to the acquisition of the assets. An asset is recognized when it is probable that the economic benefits associated 

with the item flow to the entity and cost can be reliably measured.   

 

(b) Subsequent costs          

The cost of replacing part of an item of property, plant and equipment is recognised in the carrying amount of 

the item if it is probable that the future economic benefits embodied within the part will flow to the Company 

and its cost can be measured reliably. The costs of the day-to-day servicing of property, plant and equipment 

are recognised in profit or loss as incurred. 

     

(c) Depreciation          

Depreciation is recognised in the statement of profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the estimated useful lives 

of each item of property, plant and equipment. Leased assets are depreciated over the shorter of the lease term 

and their useful lives. Depreciation begins when an asset is available for use and ceases at the earlier of the date 

that the asset is derecognised or classified as held for sale in accordance with IFRS 5, Non-current Assets Held for 

Sale and Discontinued Operations.      

          

Land is not depreciated. Depreciation on other assets is calculated using the straight-line method to allocate 

their cost or re-valued amounts over their estimated useful lives.     

 

The estimated useful lives for the current and comparative period are as follows: 

Plant and machinery                  12.5% 

Leasehold land and buildings                  2% of cost/valuation 

Furniture, fittings, and office equipment                   10% 

Computer equipment                  33 1/3% 

Motor vehicles     25% 

Assets under lease                 Over the period of lease 

 

The assets’ residual values and useful lives are reviewed at the end of each reporting period and adjusted, if 

appropriate. An asset’s carrying amount is written down immediately to its recoverable amount if the asset’s 

carrying amount is greater than its estimated recoverable amount. 

 

(d) Revaluation of land and building. 

Property, plant & equipment are initially recorded at cost. Land and building are subsequently carried at 

revalued amount being the fair value at the date of revaluation less any subsequent accumulated depreciation 

and subsequent accumulated impairment losses. Revaluations are made with sufficient regularity such that the 

carrying amount does not differ materially from that which would be determined using fair value at the end of 

the reporting period. 
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   Property, plant and equipment- continued 

When a property is revalued, any increase in it carrying amount (as a result of revaluation) is transferred to a 

revaluation reserve, except to the extent that it reverses a revaluation decrease of the same property previously 

recognised as an expense in the of profit or loss. 

 

When the value of a property is decreased as a result of a revaluation, the decrease is charged against any 

related credit balance in the revaluation reserve in respect of that property. However, to the extent that it 

exceeds any surplus, it is recognised as an expense in profit or loss. 

 

When revalued assets are being depreciated, part of the surplus is being realized as the asset is used. The amount 

of the surplus realized is the difference between the depreciation charged on the revalued amount and the 

lower depreciation which would be charged to property revaluation reserve and accumulated losses but not 

through profit or loss. 

The revaluation of land and building is carried out every three (3) years. 

         

(e) De-recognition 

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised on disposal or when no future economic benefits are 

expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss arising on de-recognition of the asset (calculated as the 

difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset) is included in profit or loss 

in the year the asset is derecognised.    

 

2.18 Statutory deposit 

 

Statutory deposit represents a fixed deposit with the Central Bank of Nigeria in accordance with section 10(3) of 

the Insurance Act, 2003. The deposit is recognised at the cost in the statement of financial position being 10% of 

the statutory minimum capital requirement of N3 billion for General insurance business. Interest income on the 

deposit is recognised in the statement of profit or loss in the period the interest is earned.   

 

2.19 Insurance contracts and insurance contract liabilities 

 

In accordance with IFRS 4 insurance contracts, the Company has continued to apply the accounting policies it 

applied in accordance with Nigerian GAAP.  These contracts are accident, workmen’s compensation, motor, 

marine and aviation and fire insurance. 

 

Insurance contracts protect the Company’s customers against the risk of harm from unforeseen events to their 

properties resulting from their legitimate activities. The typical protection offered is designed for employers who 

become legally liable to pay compensation to injured employees (employers’ liability) and for individual and 

business customers who become liable to pay compensation to a third party for bodily harm or property damage 

(public liability).  

 

Property insurance contracts mainly compensate the Company’s customers for damage suffered to their 

properties or for the value of property lost.  

 

Others forms of Insurance contracts include but are not limited to workmen’s compensation, motor, marine and 

aviation insurance.  

 

Claims and loss adjustment expenses are charged to income as incurred based on the estimated liability for 

compensation owed to contract holders or third parties damaged by the contract holders. They include direct 

and indirect claims settlement costs arising from events that have occurred up to the end of the reporting period 

even if they have not yet been reported to the Company i.e. Claims incurred but not reported (IBNR) which is 

actuarial valuation. The Company does not discount its liabilities for unpaid claims other than for workmen 

compensation claims. Liabilities for unpaid claims are estimated using the impute of assessments of provision 

reported to the Company and analysis for the claims incurred but not reported (IBNR). 
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Insurance contracts and insurance contract liabilities- continued 

Reinsurance contracts held  

The Company holds the under-noted reinsurance contracts:  

•  Treaty Reinsurance Outward is usually between the Company and Reinsurers. 

•  Facultative Reinsurance Outward is usually between the Company and other insurance companies or  

   between the Company and Reinsurers. 

• Facultative reinsurance inwards are usually between the Company and other insurance Companies or be 

   the Company and Reinsurers. 

 

Premiums due to the reinsurers are paid and all claims and recoveries due from reinsurers are received.  

Contracts entered into by the Company with reinsurers under which the Company is compensated for losses on 

one or more contracts issued by the Company and that meet the classification requirements for insurance 

contracts are classified as reinsurance contracts held. Contracts that do not meet these classification 

requirements are classified as financial assets.  

 

The benefits to which the Company is entitled under its reinsurance contracts held are recognized as 

reinsurance assets. These assets consist of short-term balances due from reinsurers, as well as long term 

receivables that are dependent on the expected claims and benefits arising under the related reinsured 

insurance contracts. Amounts recoverable from or due to reinsurers are measured consistently with the amount 

associated with the reinsured insurance contracts and in accordance with the terms of each reinsurance 

contract. Reinsurance liabilities are primarily premiums payable for reinsurance contracts and are recognized 

as an expense when due. 

 

The Company’s Insurance liabilities or balances arising from insurance contracts primarily include those 

insurance contract liabilities that were valued by the Actuary. These include unearned premiums reserve and 

outstanding claim reserve.  

 

(i) Unearned premium reserve 

Unearned premium provision is calculated using a time - apportionment basis, in particular, the 365ths method. 

 

(ii)  Outstanding claims reserve 

Individual loss estimates are provided on each claim reported. In addition, provisions are made for adjustment 

expenses, changes in reported claims and for claims incurred but not reported (IBNR), based on past experience 

and business in force. 

 

The reserve for outstanding claims is maintained at the total amount of outstanding claims incurred and 

reported plus claims incurred but not reported ("IBNR") as at the reporting date. The IBNR is based on the liability 

adequacy test carried out by an Actuary.  

 

(iii) Liability adequacy test 

At the end of each reporting period, liability adequacy tests are performed by an Actuary to ensure the 

adequacy of the contract liabilities net of related DAC assets. In performing these tests, current best estimates 

of future contractual cash flows and claims handling and administration expenses, as well as investment income 

from the assets backing such liabilities, are used. Any deficiency is immediately charged to profit or loss initially 

by writing off DAC and by subsequently establishing a provision for losses arising from liability adequacy tests.  

 

The provisions of the Insurance Act, CAP I17 LFN 2004 require an actuarial valuation for life reserves only however, 

IFRS 4 requires a liability adequacy test for both life and non-life insurance reserves. The provision of section 59 

of the Financial Reporting Council Act No.6, 2011 gives superiority to the provisions of IFRS and since it results in 

a more conservative reserving than the provision of the Insurance Act, CAP I17 LFN 2004, it supports the 

Company's prudential concerns. 
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Insurance contracts and insurance contract liabilities- continued 

 

(iv) Salvage and subrogation reimbursements  

Some insurance contracts permit the Company to sell (usually damaged) property acquired in settling a claim 

(for example, salvage). The Company may also have the right to pursue third parties for payment of some or all 

costs (for example, subrogation). Estimates of salvage recoveries are included as an allowance in the 

measurement of the insurance liability for claims, and salvage property is recognized in other assets when the 

liability is settled. The allowance is the amount that can reasonably be recovered from the disposal of the 

property. 

 

Subrogation reimbursements are also considered as an allowance in the measurement of the insurance liability 

for claims and are recognized in other assets when the liability is settled. The allowance is the assessment of the 

amount that can be recovered from the action against the liable third party.    

    

2.20 Trade payables   

 

Trade payables (i.e. insurance payables) are recognised when due and measured on initial recognition at fair 

value less directly attributable transaction costs. Subsequent to initial recognition, they are measured at 

amortised cost using the effective interest rate method. Trade payables include payables to agents and brokers, 

payables to reinsurance companies, payables to coinsurance companies and commission payable. 

          

The fair value of a non-interest-bearing liability is its discounted repayment amount. Trade payables are 

derecognised when the obligation under the liability is settled, cancelled or expired.   

      

2.21 Provisions and other payables      

      

Provision is recognised if, as a result of a past event, the Company has a present legal or constructive obligation 

that can be estimated reliably, and it is probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be required to settle 

the obligation.   

        

Provisions are measured at the best of estimate of the expenditure required to settle the obligation at the end 

of the reporting period. The provisions are reviewed at the end of the reporting period and adjusted to reflect 

the current best estimate.        

 

Other payables are recognised initially at fair value and subsequently measured at amortised cost using 

effective interest method. 

         

2.22 Borrowings    

       

Borrowings are recognised initially at fair value, net of transaction costs incurred. Borrowings are subsequently 

carried at amortised cost; any difference between the proceeds (net of transaction costs) and the redemption 

value is recognised in the statement of profit or loss over the period of the borrowings using the effective interest 

method.           

     

2.23 Retirement obligations and employee benefits   

      

The Company operates the following contribution and benefit schemes for its employees:  

   

Defined benefit gratuity scheme         

The Company has a defined benefit gratuity scheme for management and non-management staff. Under this 

scheme, a specified amount as determined by actuarial valuation is contributed by the Company and charged 

to the statement of profit or loss over the service life of each employee.  
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Retirement obligations and employee benefits- continued 

 

The Company recognizes the following changes in the net defined benefit obligation under ‘’the employee 

benefit expense’’. Service costs comprising current service costs, past services costs, gains and losses on 

curtailment and non-routine settlements.   

        

Employees are entitled to gratuity after completing a minimum of five continuous full years of service. The 

gratuity obligation is calculated annually by Independent Actuaries using the projected unit credit method. The 

present value of the gratuity obligation is determined by discounting the estimated future cash outflows using 

market yields on high quality corporate bonds. The liability recognized in the statement of financial position in 

respect of defined benefit gratuity plan is the present value of the defined benefit obligation at the reporting 

date less the fair value of plan assets. Actuarial gains or losses arising from the valuation are credited or charged 

to statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income in the financial year in which they arise.  

 

Re-measurement arising from actuarial gains and losses are immediately recognized in the statement of 

financial position with corresponding debit or credit recognized in the retained earnings through OCI in periods 

in which they occur. Re-measurement are not reclassified in subsequent periods. Past service costs are 

recognized in the profit or loss on the earlier of: 

 

• The date of plan amendment or curtailment and; 

• The date that the Group recognizes related restructuring costs 

 

Net interest is calculated by applying the discount rate to the net defined benefit liability or asset using the rate 

at the beginning of the period. The Company recognizes the following changes in the net defined benefit 

obligation under ‘’the employee benefit expense’’. Service costs comprising current service costs, past services 

costs, gains and losses on curtailment and non-routine settlements. 

 

Defined contribution pension scheme  

The Company operates a defined contributory pension scheme for eligible employees. The Company and 

employees contribute 10% and 8% respectively of the employees' Basic, Housing and Transport allowances in 

line with the provisions of the Pension Reform Act 2014. The Company pays the contributions to a pension fund 

administrator. The Company has no further payment obligations once the contributions have been paid. The 

contributions are recognised as employee benefits expense when they are due. Prepaid contributions are 

recognised as an asset to the extent that a cash refund or a reduction in the future payments is available.  

           

Short-term benefits           

Wages, salaries, paid annual leave, bonuses and non-monetary benefits are recognised as employee benefit 

expenses when the associated services are rendered by the employees of the Company. 

 

2.24 Income taxes- Company income tax and deferred tax liabilities 

 

Income tax expense comprises current and deferred tax. Income tax expense is recognised in the of profit or 

loss except to the extent that it relates to items recognised directly in equity, in which case it is recognised in 

equity or in other comprehensive income. Current income tax is the estimated income tax payable on taxable 

income for the year, using tax rates enacted or substantively enacted at reporting date, and any adjustment 

to tax payable in respect of previous years. 

  

The tax currently payable is based on taxable results for the year. Taxable results differs from results as reported 

in the profit or loss because it includes not only items of income or expense that are taxable or deductible in 

other years but it further excludes items that are never taxable or deductible.  Management periodically 

evaluates positions taken in tax returns with respect to situations in which applicable tax regulation is subject to 

interpretation and establishes provisions where appropriate.    
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Income taxes- Company income tax and deferred tax liabilities- continued 

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are recognised where the carrying amount of an asset or liability differs from 

its tax base. Deferred taxes are recognized using the balance sheet liability method, providing for temporary 

differences between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities for financial reporting purposes and the 

amounts used for taxation purposes (tax bases of the assets or liability). The amount of deferred tax provided is 

based on the expected manner of realisation or settlement of the carrying amount of assets and liabilities using 

tax rates that are expected to apply in the year when the asset is realised or the liability is settled, based on tax 

rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date. 

 

Deferred tax asset is recognised only to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profits will be available 

against which the asset can be utilised. Deferred tax assets are reviewed at each reporting date and are 

reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that the related tax benefit will be realised. Additional income 

taxes that arise from the distribution of dividends are recognised at the same time as the liability to pay the 

related dividend is recognised.      

          

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a legally enforceable right to offset current tax 

assets against current tax liabilities and when the deferred income taxes assets and liabilities relate to income 

taxes levied by the same taxation authority on either the taxable entity or different taxable entities where there 

is an intention to settle the balances on a net basis. The tax effects of carry-forwards of unused losses or unused 

tax credits are recognised as an asset when it is probable that future taxable profits will be available against 

which these losses can be utilised. 

  

2.25 Share capital and share premium 

             

Shares are classified as equity when there is no obligation to transfer cash or other assets. Any amounts received 

over and above the par value of the shares issued are classified as ‘share premium’ in equity. Incremental costs 

directly attributable to the issue of equity instruments are shown in equity as a deduction from the proceeds, net 

of tax.         

 

2.26 Dividend on ordinary shares 

Dividends on the Company’s ordinary shares are recognised in equity in the period in which they are paid or, if 

earlier, approved by the Company’s shareholders. Dividends for the year that are declared after the reporting 

date are dealt with in the subsequent events note.  

      

2.27 Statutory Contingency reserve 

In compliance with Section 21 (2) of Insurance Act, CAP I17 LFN 2004, the contingency reserve is credited with 

the greater of 3% of gross premium written, or 20% of the net profits. This shall accumulate until it reaches the 

amount of greater of minimum paid-up capital or 50 percent of net premium. 

 

2.28 Retained earnings/accumulated losses 

This reserve represents amount set aside out of the profits of the Company which shall at the discretion of the 

Directors be applicable for meeting contingencies, repairs or maintenance of any works connected with the 

business of the Company, for equalizing dividends, for special dividend or bonus, or such other purposes for 

which the profits of the Company may lawfully be applied.    

 

2.29 Fair value reserve 

 

The fair value reserve comprises the cumulative net change in the fair value of the equity instruments designated 

at fair value through other comprehensive income. This amount cannot be recycled to profit or loss in 

subsequent period even if the instruments are derecognized. The available-for-sale reserve for 31 December 

2019 comprises the cumulative net change in the fair value of the group’s available-for-sale investments. Net 

fair value movements are not to be recycled to profit or loss if an underlying available-for-sale investment is 

either derecognized or impaired. 
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2.30 Property revaluation reserve 

Subsequent to initial recognition, an item of property, plant and equipment may be revalued to fair value. 

However, if such item is revalued, the whole class of asset to which that asset belongs has to be revalued. The 

revaluation surplus is recognized in equity, unless it reverses a decrease in the fair value of the same asset which 

was previously recognized as an expense, in which case it is recognized in profit or loss. A subsequent decrease 

in the fair value is charged against this reserve to the extent that there is a credit balance relating to the same 

asset, with the balance being recognized in profit or loss. 

 

2.31 Gratuity valuation reserve 

 

The gratuity valuation reserve comprises the cumulative net change in the re-measurement gain/loss) on 

defined benefit plans.  

 

2.32 Contingent assets and liabilities 

 

A contingent asset is a possible asset that arises from past events and whose existence will be confirmed only 

by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly within the control of 

the Company. A contingent liability is a possible obligation that arises from past events and whose existence will 

be confirmed only by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly 

within the control of the company or the company has a present obligation as a result of past events but is not 

recognized because it is not likely that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation; or the 

amount cannot be reliably estimated. 

   

Contingent liabilities and contingent assets are never recognized rather they are disclosed in the financial 

statements when they arise. 

 

2.33 Premium and unearned premium 

 

Premiums written comprise the premium on contracts incepting in the financial year. Premiums written are stated 

gross of commission payable to agents and exclusive of taxes levied on premiums. The Company earns premium 

income evenly over the term of the insurance policy generally using the pro rata method. The portion of the 

premium related to the unexpired portion of the policy at the end of the fiscal year is reflected in unearned 

premium. 

 

2.34 Reinsurance expenses 

 

Reinsurance costs represent outward premium paid to reinsurance companies less the unexpired portion as at 

the end of the accounting year.  

 

2.35 Fee and commission 

 

Fees and commission income consist primarily of agency and brokerage commission, reinsurance and profit 

commissions, and other contract fees. Reinsurance commission receivables are deferred in the same way as 

acquisition costs. These fees are recognised as revenue over the period in which the related services are 

performed. If the fees are for services provided in future periods, then they are deferred and recognised over 

those future periods. 

 

2.36 Claims expense 

 

Claims incurred consist of claims and claims handling expenses paid during the financial year together with the 

movement in the provision for outstanding claims. (See policy for reserve for outstanding claims above) The gross 

provision for claims represents the estimated liability arising from claims in current and preceding financial years 

which have not yet given rise to claims paid. The provision includes an allowance for claims management and 

handling expenses.   
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Claims expense- continued 

The gross provision for claims is estimated based on current information and the ultimate liability may vary as a 

result of subsequent information and events and may result in significant adjustments to the amounts provided. 

Adjustments to the amounts of claims provision for prior years are reflected in profit or loss in the financial period 

in which adjustments are made and disclosed separately if material.  

 

2.37 Acquisition costs and maintenance expenses      

Acquisition costs represent commissions payable and other expenses related to the acquisition of insurance 

contract revenues written during the financial year. Deferred acquisition costs represent the proportion of 

acquisition costs incurred which corresponds to the unearned premium provision (See policy for Deferred 

Acquisition Cost above).  Examples of these costs include, but are not limited to, commission expense, 

supervisory levy, superintending fees, and other technical expenses. Maintenance expenses are those incurred 

in servicing existing policies/contract. 

 

2.38 Management expenses 

Management expenses are expenses other than claims, investment expenses, employee benefits, expenses for 

marketing and administration and underwriting expenses. They include wages, professional fee, depreciation 

expenses and other non-operating expenses. Other Operating expenses are accounted for on accrual basis 

and recognized in the statement of profit or loss upon utilization of the service or at the date of their origin.  

 

Finance income and expenses 

Finance income and expense for all interest-bearing financial instruments are recognised within 'finance 

income' and 'finance costs' in the profit or loss using the effective interest method. The effective interest method 

is a method of calculating the amortised cost of a financial asset or liability (or group of assets and liabilities) 

and of allocating the finance income or finance costs over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is the 

rate that exactly discounts the expected future cash payments or receipts through the expected life of the 

financial instrument, or when appropriate, a shorter period, to the net carrying amount of the instrument.  

 

The application of the method has the effect of recognizing income (and expense) receivable (or payable) on 

the instrument evenly in proportion to the amount outstanding over the period to maturity or repayment. In 

calculating effective interest, the Group estimates cash flows considering all contractual terms redemption, are 

included in the calculation to the extent that they can be measured and are considered to be an integral part 

of the effective interest rate.  

 

Cash flows arising from the direct and incremental costs of issuing financial instruments are also taken into 

account in the calculation. Where it is not possible to otherwise estimate reliably the cash flows or the expected 

life of a financial instrument, effective interest is calculated by reference to the payments or receipts specified 

in the contract, and the full contractual term. Once a financial asset or a group of similar financial assets has 

been written down as a result of an impairment loss, interest income is recognised using the rate of interest used 

to discount the future cash flows for the purpose of measuring the impairment loss. 

 

2.39 Income tax expense 

Income tax expense comprises current income tax, education tax levy, information technology tax and 

deferred tax. (See policy on taxation above). 

 

2.40 Earnings per share 

The Company presents basic earnings per share (EPS) data for its ordinary shares. Basic EPS is calculated by 

dividing the profit or loss attributable to ordinary shareholders of the Company by the weighted average number 

of ordinary shares outstanding during the period. Diluted EPS is determined by adjusting the profit or loss 

attributable to ordinary shareholders and the weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding for the 

effects of all dilutive potential ordinary shares. 

 

2.41 Securities Trading Policy 

In compliance with Rule 17.15 Disclosure of dealings in Issuers’ Shares, Rule book of the Exchange 2015 (Issuers 

Rule) Prestige Assurance Plc maintains a Security Trading Policy, which guides Directors, Audit Committee 

members, employees and all individuals categorized as insiders as to their dealing in the Company’s Securities. 

The Policy is periodically reviewed by the Board and updated. The Company has made specific enquiries of all 

its directors and other insiders and is not aware of any infringement of the policy during the period under review. 
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2.42 Shareholding Structure/Free Float Status 

 

  Company Name:  Prestige Assurance Plc 

  Board Listed: Main Board 

  Year End: December 

  Reporting Period: Nine Months Ended 30 September 2021 

  Share Price at end of reporting period: N0.47K (2020: N0.60K) 

 

DESCRIPTION 

 

30-SEPTEMBER-2021  30-SEPTEMBER-2020 

UNIT PERCENTAGE UNIT PERCENTAGE 

Issued Share Capital 13,252,561,888 100% 
    

6,361,196,701  100% 

Substantial Shareholdings (5% and above)     

New India Assurance Company Limited 10,379,522,933 78.32 4,421,031,707 69.50 

Leadway Assurance Company 807,389,393 6.09 
 

728,357,022 11.45 

Total Substantial Shareholdings 11,186,912,326  84.41 5,149,388,729 80.95 

Directors' Shareholdings (direct and indirect), excluding directors with substantial interests  

Dr. Adedoyin Salami - - - - 

Mr. Atul Sahal - - - - 

Mr. Muftau Olakunle Oyegunle (Direct) 5,506,532 0.05 1,342,460 0.02 

Mr. Gopalan Raghu (Indirect) – Retired  
28-April-2021 - - 156,402,117 2.46 

Mr. Sarbeswar Sahoo - - - - 

Mr. Raja Vadlamudi - - - - 

Mrs. Rekha Gopalkrishnan - - - - 

Mrs. Funmi Oyetunji (Direct) 11,844 0.00 11,844 0.00 

Total Directors' Shareholdings 5,518,376 0.05 157,756,421 2.48 

Other Influential Shareholdings - Governments     

Dev. Finance & Investment Co. Ltd – Imo State 4,834 0.00 - - 

Ministry of Finance Incorporated – Balyesa State 9,658,169 0.07 - - 

Total Other Influential Shareholdings /Governments 9,663,003 0.07 - - 

Free Float in Units and Percentage 2,050,468,183 15.47 632,430,930.60 16.57 

Free Float in Value   963,720,046.00       

 

DECLARATION: 

(A) Prestige Assurance Plc with a free float percentage of 15.47% as at 30th September 2021, this is not yet in 

compliant with the Exchange's free float requirements for companies listed on the Main Board. The company has 

got waver for a period of three (3) years from The Nigeria Stock Exchange for extension of period to complied with 

the rules. 

(B) Prestige Assurance Plc with a free float value of N546,270,066.68k as at 30th September 2020, is not yet in compliant 

with The Exchange's free float requirements for companies listed on the Main Board. 

 

 

 



   

PRESTIGE ASSURANCE PLC

THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

     FOR THE PERIOD ENDED 30TH SEPTEMBER, 2021



Prestige Assurance Plc

Unaudited IFRS Financial Results For 

The Third  Quarter Ended 30th September, 2021

Statement of Profit or Loss for the Period Ended  30th September, 2021

Current Period Prior- Period Current Year Prior Year 

June - Sept June -Sept to Date to Date

Notes 2021 2020 2021 2020

N'000 N'000 N'000 N'000

Gross premium Written 2,078,548       1,457,783       7,512,077          5,370,785        

Gross premiums income 27 2,200,861        1,556,072        6,724,930 5,077,866         

Re-insurance expenses 27 (1,230,771)       (789,975)         (3,171,274)         (2,395,524)       

Net premium income 28 970,089           766,097           3,553,655 2,682,343

 

Commission income 29 259,137           229,359           713,469 596,537            

Total underwriting income 1,229,227        995,456           4,267,125 3,278,880

 

Claims expenses 30 (222,760)          (501,715)         (1,324,936)         (1,050,655)       

Acquisition cost 31 (367,260)          (240,562)         (1,045,822)         (814,029)          

Maintenance cost  (307,963)          (165,938)         (788,989)            (537,120)          

 

Total underwriting expenses (897,983)          (908,215)         (3,159,747)         (2,401,804)       

 

Underwriting profit 331,244           87,241             1,107,378          877,076

Investment income 32 48,351             127,135           610,577 505,861

Other Income 33 16,395             107,302           29,742 114,566            

Net fair value loss 3,014               9,055              4,679                 (5,956)              

NET OPERATING INCOME 399,004           330,733           1,752,376 1,491,547

Less:

Management expenses  (235,036)          (150,353)         (612,157)            (456,832)          

Credit Loss expenses 3,125               (650)                (1,500)                (3,800)              

Results from operating activities 167,092           179,730           1,138,718 1,030,915

Finance costs (200)                (520)                (1,200)                (1,911)              

Profit before income tax expense 166,892           179,210           1,137,518 1,029,004

Less

Taxation expense (6,308)             (48,387)           (200,433)            (277,831)          

PROFIT AFTER TAXATION 160,584           130,823           937,085 751,173

RETAINED PROFIT FOR THE PERIOD 160,584           130,823           937,085 751,173
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Prestige Assurance Plc

Unaudited IFRS Financial Results For 

The Third  Quarter Ended 30th September, 2021

Statement of Other Comprehensive Income

For The Period Ended 30th September, 2021

Current Period Prior- Period Current Year Prior Year 

June - Sept June -Sept to Date to Date

2021 2020 2021 2020

Profit for the year 160,584           130,823           937,085 751,173

Other comprehensive income -                   -                   -                   -                   

Total comprehensive income for the year 160,584           130,823           937,085 751,173

Attributable to owners of the parent 160,584           130,823           937,085 751,173

Attributable to minority interest -                   -                   -                   -                   

160,584           130,823           937,085 751,173

Earnings per share:

Basic earnings per share (kobo) 1.21                  0.99                  7.07 5.67

Diluted earnings per share (kobo) 1.21                  0.99                  7.07 5.67
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Prestige Assurance Plc

Unaudited IFRS Financial Results For 

The Third Quarter Ended 30th September, 2021

Statement of Financial Position as at 30th September 2021

Notes 30 September 31 December

2021 2020

 N'000 N'000

Assets

Cash and Cash Equivalents 1 4,394,856 1,369,570             

Financial Assets:

Fair value through profit or loss 2a 205,487 200,808                

Debt instruments at amortised cost 2b 3,200,764 2,935,916             

Equity instruments at fair value through OCI 2c 2,230,416 2,230,415             

Trade Receivables 3 471,364              99,178                  

Prepayment & other receivables 4 37,973 196,017                

Reinsurance Assets 5 3,304,683 3,198,490             

Deferred Acquisition Cost 6 447,046 258,866                

Investment in Finance Lease 7 419,721 378,983                

Investment Property 8 2,547,886 2,547,886             

Intangible Assets 9 24,507 28,180                  

Property, Plant and Equipment 10 1,460,370 1,439,906             

Statutory Deposit 11 300,000 300,000                

Deposit in escrow account with the CBN 12 -                     3,320,710             

Total Assets 19,045,073 18,504,925           

Liabilities

Insurance Contract liabilities 13 4,319,769 4,836,743

Trade Payables 14 356,294 270,739

Provisions and other payables 15 365,795 266,185

Short Term borrowing 16 84,765                0

Retirement benefits obligations 17 186,667 195,543

Current Income tax liabilities 18 269,078 78,281

Deferred tax liabiliies 19 453,539 453,539

Total liabilities 6,035,907 6,101,030

Equity

Issued and  paid up share capital 20 6,626,281 6,626,281

Share Premium 21 36,623 36,623

Contingency reserves 22 2,631,163           2,405,800             

Revenue Reserve 23 1,132,809           752,400                

Property Revaluation reserves 24 764,519              764,519                

Reseve on Actuarial valuation of Gratuity 25 7,503                  7,503                    

Fair value reserve 26 1,810,269 1,810,269

Total Equity 13,009,167 12,403,395

Total liabilities and reserves 19,045,073 18,504,425

…........................................... …...................................... …......................................

Dr. Adedoyin Salami Mr. Sarbeswar Sahoo Mr. Oluwadare Emmanuel

Chairman Managing Director/CEO Chief Financial Officer

FRC/2019/IODN/00000019408 FRC/2020/003/00000020603 FRC/2013/ICAN/00000003649

 

These unaudited financial statements were approved by the Board of Directors on 28th October,2021  

and signed on its behalf by:
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The Third Quarter Ended 30th September, 2021

Statement of Changes in Equity

Share Capital 
Share 

Premium 

Statutory 

Contingency 

Reserve  

Retained 

Earnings

Fair Value 

Reserve

Gratuity 

Valuation 

Reserve

Property 

Revaluation 

Reserve

Total

N'000 N'000 N'000 N'000 N'000 N'000 N'000 N'000

Balance 1st January 2021 6,626,281        36,623          2,405,800      752,400           1,810,269     7,503             764,519              12,403,395          

Profit for the period -                   -                -                 937,086           -               -                -                      937,086               

Transfer to Contingency reserve -                   -                225,362         (225,362)         -               -                -                      -                       

Cash dividend -                   -                -                 (331,314)         -               -                -                      (331,314)              

Balance 30th September 2021 6,626,281       36,623          2,631,162     1,132,810       1,810,269    7,503            764,519              13,009,167         

 

Prestige Assurance Plc

Statement of Changes in Equity

The Third Quarter Ended 30th September, 2020  

Share Capital 
Share 

Premium 

Statutory 

Contingency 

Reserve  

Retained 

Earnings

Fair Value 

Reserve

Gratuity 

Valuation 

Reserve

Property 

Revaluation 

Reserve

Total

N'000 N'000 N'000 N'000 N'000 N'000 N'000 N'000

Balance as at 1st January 2020 2,691,275        327,548        2,195,538      746,727           1,701,742     (8,567)           791,472              8,445,735            

-                       

Profit for the period -                   -                -                 751,173           -               -                -                      751,173               

Transfer to Contingency reserve -                   -                161,124         (161,124)         -               -                -                      -                       

Bonus issue declared 489,323           -                -                 (489,323)         -               -                -                      -                       

Balance as at 30th September 2020 2,691,275       327,548        2,356,662     847,453          1,701,742    (8,567)           791,472              9,196,908           
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Unaudited IFRS Financial Results For 

The Third Quarter Ended 30th September, 2021

Statement of Cash flows

For The Period Ended 30th September 2021

30 September 30 September

2021 2020
N'000 N'000

Cash Flows from Operating Activites

Premium received from policy holders 7,139,891            5,091,625             

Commission received 832,866               655,396                

Commission paid (1,234,002)           (805,567)               

Reinsurance premium paid (3,821,098)           (2,577,854)            

Claims Paid (4,824,188)           (2,249,371)            

Claims Recovered 3,254,318            1,188,182             

Other operating cash payments (1,234,426)           (1,219,506)            

Other operating income 25,447                 23,662                  

Cash flows (used in)/generated from operating activities 138,807               106,568                

Company income tax paid (9,636)                  (30,644)                 

Benefits paid (8,876)                  (18,673)                 

Net cash consumed by operating activities 120,295               57,251                  

 

Cash flows from investing activites

Purchase of property, plant & equipment (110,633)              (33,836)                 

Proceeds on disposal of property, plant & equipment 5,595                   230                       

Proceeds on redemption of debt instruments measured at amortised cost 3,520,711            500,000                

Purchase of debt instruments at amortised cost (606,977)              (445,973)               

Interest received 366,730               320,907                

Other investment income 47,764                 37,071                  

Dividends received 196,084 147,883                

Net Cash inflow/(outflow) from investing activities 3,419,273            526,282                

Cash Flows from Financing activities  

Repayment of interest portion of lease liabilities (1,200)                  (1,911)                   

Repayment of principal portion of lease liabilities (16,357)                (10,383)                 

Repayment of overdraft(book balance) -                       -                        

Net Cash inflow/outflow from financing activities (17,557)               (12,294)                 

Net increase in cash and cash equivalents 3,522,011            571,239                

Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning 788,080               798,109                

Effects of exchange rate changes on cash and cash equivalents -                       98,154                  

Cash and cash equivalents at the end 4,310,091            1,467,502             
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30 September 31 December  

2021 2020

N'000 N'000

1 Cash and cash equivalents

Balance with local banks 3,651,196         723,946              

Balance with foreign bank 2,588                2,584                  

Deposits and Placements with local banks 744,327            645,995              

4,398,111         1,372,525           

Less: Allowance for impairment losses (3,255)               (2,955)                 

4,394,856         1,369,570           

2 Financial Assets

a Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Balance at the beginning of the year 200,808            174,598              

Addition during the period -                    78,952                

Disposal during the period -                    (95,692)               

Realised gains on financial assets at FVTPL 39,704                

200,808            197,562              

Appreciation during the period 4,679                3,246                  

Total 205,487            200,808              

205,487            200,808              

b Debt instruments at amortised cost

FGN bonds 3,041,660         2,828,514           

Corporate bonds 115,160            115,620              

Lagos State series ii bonds -                    21,377                

Staff loans and advances 153,428            79,688                

3,310,248         3,045,199           

Less: Allowance for  credit losses (109,483)           (109,283)             

Total dabt instruments at amortised cost 3,200,764         2,935,916           

c Equity instruments at fair value through OCI

Leadway PFA scheme share 1,928,293         1,928,293           

Leadway Leola Hotel Ltd 109,202            109,202              

Nigerian Insurers Association Pool 117,907            117,907              

Waica Reinsurance Corporation 75,013              75,013                

2,230,416         2,230,415           

3 Trade Receivables

Amount due from brokers 471,364            99,178                

Amount due from insurance companies -                    -                      

471,364            99,178                

Age analysis of trade receivables

Days

0-30 471,364            99,178                

31-above -                    -                      

Total 471,364            99,178                

4 Prepayment & other receivables

Prepaid insurance- company's assets 4,533                15,343                

Prepaid Insurance- minimum deposit premium -                    33,903                

Prepaid internet -                    3,403                  

WHT receivables 25,842              24,345                

Other receivables 53,985              129,652              

84,360              206,646              

Less Impairment (46,387)             (10,629)               

Balance at end of period 37,973              196,017              

Impairment loss on other receivables relates to amount advanced to Company's staff cooperative 

purchase of land but the transfer of ownership was not effected by the seller and Ex-MD In 2012,

the company fully impaired the receivables as there was no evidence of recovery.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

30 September 31 December  

2021 2020

N'000 N'000

5 Reinsurance Assets

Co-insurance share of claims expenses paid 343,829             274,265             

Reinsurance debtors 655,619             215,858             

Reinsurance share of oustanding claims expenses 986,215             2,045,401          

Allowance for Impairment of claims recoverable (6,232)                (12,463)              

Total outstanding claims recoverable 1,979,431          2,523,061          

Reinsurance share of unearned premium 1,325,251          675,429             

Balance at end of the quarter 3,304,683          3,198,490          

(a) Outstanding claims recoverable:

Balance at beginning 2,535,524          1,741,499          

Increase/(Decrease) during the year (549,861)            794,025             

Balance at end of the quarter 1,985,663          2,535,524          

Impairment loss (6,232)                (12,463)              

1,979,431          2,523,061          

6 Deferred Acquisition Cost

Balance at the beginning of the year 258,866             224,636             

Commission incurred during the period 1,234,002          1,116,987          

Amotised to profit or loss (1,045,822)         (1,082,757)         

Balance at the end of the period 447,046             258,866             

7 Finance lease receivables

At I January 389,831             212,200             

Additions during the period 349,201             400,385             

Repayment during the year (307,463)            (222,754)            

431,569             389,831             

Less: Allowance for credit losses (11,848)              (10,848)              

419,721             378,983             

8 Investment Property

Balance at beginning of the year 2,547,886          2,591,439          

Additions -                     -                     

Disposal -                     -                     

2,547,886          2,591,439          

Appreciation/(Diminution) -                     (43,553)              

2,547,886          2,547,886          

9 Intangible Assets

Cost:

Balance at beginning of the year 28,180               33,978               

Additions -                     -                     

Disposal -                     -                     

Amortisation (3,673)                (5,798)                

Balance at the end of the quarter 24,507               28,180               

As at December 2015, reinsurance assets of N18,695,000 representing recovery expected from 

Universal Insurance Plc was impairedof which sum of N12,463,000 have been recovered in this 
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10 Property, Plant and Equipment

30th Sept, 2021

Plant

and Leasehold Furniture Computer Motor Right -of-Use

Machinery Land Building and fittings equipment Vehicles Assets Total

N'000 N'000 N'000 N'000 N'000 N'000 N'000 N'000

 Cost/valuation

At 1st January 2021 46,548              450,000          902,250              82,391              103,040              248,664             56,332               1,889,225            

Additions 10,634              -                  -                      2,522 5,372                  78,406               13,700               110,633               

Disposals -                    -                  -                      -     -                     (22,477)              -                     (22,477)                

At 30th Sept, 2021 57,182              450,000          902,250              84,913              108,412              304,593             70,032               1,977,381            

Depreciation

At 1st January 2021 32,493              -                  30,532                56,085              100,228              196,184             33,798               449,320               

Charge for the year 3,515                -                  22,899                3,625                3,098                  37,231               17,557               87,925                 

Disposals -                    -                      -                   -                     (20,234)              -                     (20,234)                

-                   -                     

At 30th Sept, 2021 36,008              -                  53,431                59,710              103,326              213,180             51,355               517,011               

Net book values at:

30th Sept, 2021 21,173              450,000          848,819              25,202              5,086                  91,413               18,678               1,460,370            

Property,Plant and Equipment Plant

31st December 2020 and Leasehold Furniture Computer Motor Right -of-Use
Machinery Land Building and fittings equipment Vehicles Assets Total

N'000 N'000 N'000 N'000 N'000 N'000 N'000 N'000

 Cost/valuation

At 1st January 2020 46,019              450,000          902,250              81,754              99,540                244,121             49,505               1,873,189            

Effect of adoption of IFRS 16 as at 01/01/2019 -                    -                  -                      -                   -                     -                         -                         -                      

Additions 899                   -                  -                      650                   3,647                  7,562                 10,989               23,747                 

Derecognition of ROU -                    -                      -     -                     -                     (4,161)                (4,161)                  

Revaluation -                    -                  -                      -     -                     -                     -                         -                      

Disposals (370)                  -                      (13)     (147)                   (3,019)                -                     (3,549)                  

At 31st December 2020 46,548              450,000          902,250              82,391              103,040              248,664             56,333               1,889,226            

Depreciation

At 1st January 2020 29,376              -                  -                      50,931              96,045                161,409             16,623               354,384               

Charge for the year 3,387                -                  30,532                5,167                4,330                  37,794               18,510               99,720                 

Derecognition of ROU -                    -                  -                      -                   -                     -                     (1,335)                (1,335)                  

Disposals (270)                  -                  -                      (13)                   (147)                   (3,019)                -                     (3,449)                  

At 31 December 2020 32,493              -                  30,532                56,085              100,228              196,184             33,798               449,320               

Net book value at December 2020 14,055              450,000          871,718              26,306              2,812                  52,480               22,534               1,439,906            
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30 September 31 December  

2021 2020

N'000 N'000

11 Statutory deposit 300,000           300,000             

Balance at the beginning and end of the year 300,000 300,000

  

12 Deposit in escrow account with the CBN

Escrow account with CBN                        -               3,320,710 

Deposit in escrow account with the CBN represents amount raised by the company for recapitalisation  

13 Insurance Contract Liabilities

Provision for outstanding claims 2,529,483         3,094,406           

Unearned premium 1,790,287         1,742,337           

4,319,769         4,836,743           

14 Trade payables  

Due to agents 4,081                4,151                  

Due to brokers -                    46,207                

Due to direct insured 3,058                16,370                

Due to reinsurers 49,029               8,291                  

Due to insurance companies 1,224                 16,215                 

unexpired commssion 298,901            179,505              

356,294             270,739              

15 Provisions and other payables

Industrial training fund 406                    5,000                  

Insurance levy 75,246               70,213                

profit sharing 8,639                 44,779                

Other payables 265,463             129,340              

WHT 1,222                 3,181                  

VAT 3,576                 3,629                  

Lease liability 11,243               10,043                

365,795            266,185              

16 Short term borrowings

Balance at the beginning of the year -                    10,029                

Addtion during the period(Bank balances) -                    -                      

Interest payable -                    -                      

Payment during the period -                    (10,029)               

Overdraft (book balance) 84,765              -                      

Balance at the end of the period 84,765              -                      

17 Retirement benefits obligations

Balance at the beginning of the year 195,543            210,744              

Benefits paid (8,876)               (36,673)               

Additional provision -                    44,427                

Actuarial (gain)/ loss -                    (22,955)               

Balance at the end of the period 186,667            195,543              

18 Taxation

 Per Income Statement

Income tax 177,683            17,839                

Education tax 22,750              3,556                  

Deferred taxation -                    (13,793)               

200,433            7,602                  

Per balance sheet

Balance at the beginning of the year 78,281               87,530                

Income tax 177,683             17,839                
Education  tax 22,750               3,556                  

Payments during the year (9,636)               (30,644)               

269,078            78,281                

(a)

(b) Education tax is computed at 2% of assessable profit in line with Education Tax Act CAP E4, LFN 2004.

This represents amount deposited with the Central Bank of Nigeria at the financial year end in accordance

with the provisions of sections 9(1) and 10(3) of  the Insurance Act, CAP I17, LFN 2004.

The amount provided as income tax on the profit for the period has been computed on the basis of the

Companies Tax rate of 5% of net premium written in line with the Companies Income Tax Act, CAP C21, LFN

2020 taken into consideration effective income tax rate.

purpose and deposited with CBN in accordance  with NAICOM circular with reference No: 

NAICOM/DPR/CIR/25-01-2019
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30 September 31 December  

2021 2020

N'000 N'000

19 Deferred taxation

 Balance at the beginning of the year 453,539            460,446               

Fair value gains (net) -                    6,886                  

(Writeback)/provision for the year -                    (13,793)               

Balance at the end of the period 453,539            453,539              

20 Share Capital

i Authorised:

20,000,000,000 ordinary shares of 50k per share 10,000,000       10,000,000         

ii Issued and fully paid:

5,382,551,055 ordinary shares of 50k per share 6,626,281         2,691,275           

978,645,646 ordinary share issued as  bonus share -                    489,323              

New ordinary share issued on 14 December 2020 -                    3,445,683           

6,626,281         6,626,281           

21 Share Premium

Balance at the beginning of the year 36,623              327,548              

Issuance cost/increment in share capital -                    (290,925)             

Balance at the end of the period 36,623              36,623                

22 Contingency Reserve

Balance at the beginning of the year 2,405,800         2,195,538           

Transfer from profit and loss account 225,362            210,262              

Balance at the end of the period 2,631,162         2,405,800           

23 Retained Earnings

Balance at the beginning of the year 752,400            746,727              

Transfer to Contingency reserves (225,362)           (210,262)             

Transfer from property revaluation reserve -                    26,953                

Transfer from/to profit and loss 937,085            678,305              

Bonus issue reserve -                    (489,323)             

Dividend paid (proposed) (331,314)           -                      

Balance at the end of the period 1,132,809         752,400              

 

24 Property revaluation reserves

Balance at the beginning of the year 764,519            791,472              

Arising during the year -                    -                      

Revaluation amount(Note 10) -                    -                      

764,519            791,472              

Transfer to retained earnings -                    (26,953)               

764,519            764,519               

25 Reserves on Actuarial Valuation of Gratuity

Balance at the beginning of the year 7,503                (8,567)                 

Actuarial gain/(loss) during the year -                    16,070                

Balance at the end of the period 7,503                7,503                  

26 Fair value reserve

Balance at the beginning of the year 1,810,269         1,701,742           

Gain on valuation during the period -                    108,527              

Balance at the end of the preiod 1,810,269         1,810,269           
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30 September 30 September  

2021 2020

N'000 N'000

27 Gross Premium Earned

Direct Premium 7,196,807           5,217,417           

Inward reinsurance premiums 315,270              153,369              

Gross Written Premium 7,512,077           5,370,785           

(Increase)/decrease in unearned Premium (787,147)             (292,919)             

Gross Premium income 6,724,930           5,077,866           

28 Reinsurance Cost

Reinsurance premium paid 3,821,098           2,577,854           

Increase/(Decrease) in Prepaid reinsurance (649,824)             (182,330)             

Reinsurance cost 3,171,274           2,395,524           

29 Commission Earned

Commission receivable during the period 832,866              655,396              

Unearned commission Income b/fwd 179,505              236,992              

Unearned commission Income c/fwd (298,901)             (295,851)             

Commission Earned 713,469              596,537              

30 Commission Paid

Commission Paid during the period 1,234,002           805,567              

Deferred commission Income b/fwd 258,866              224,636              

Deferred commission Income c/fwd (447,046)             (216,174)             

Commission Paid 1,045,822           814,029              

31 Net Claims Incurred

Direct Claims Paid 4,570,761           1,997,748           

Inward reinsurance claims paid 253,427              251,622              

Increase/(Decrease) Outstanding Claims (1,304,120)          (477,610)             

Gross Claims Incurred 3,520,068           1,771,761           

Reinsurance Recovered (3,254,318)          (1,188,182)          

Movement in Claims Recoverable 1,059,186           467,076              

Net claims expenses 1,324,936           1,050,655           

32 Investment Income

Interest income 

Bank deposits 366,728              319,944              

Other loans and receivables 2                         963                     

Rental income 

Finance lease contingent rental income 47,764                37,071                

Property rental income -                      -                      

Dividends

Dividends from equity investments 14,653                8,542                  

Dividends from un-quoted investments 181,431              139,341              

610,577              505,861              

33 Other Income

Gains on foreign exhange -                      100,727              

Profit on sales of  quoted equity -                      1,950                  

Profit on disposal of fixed asset 4,295                  230                     

Sundry income 25,447                11,660                

29,742                114,566              
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